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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Good morning.

          3  Welcome to today's hearing of the City Council's

          4  Committee on Transportation.  My name is John Liu.

          5  I have the privilege of chairing this Committee.

          6  Today we have four items on the agenda.  I will

          7  briefly speak about each of them.

          8                 The first item is Proposed Intro.

          9  Number 185- A. This bill has already been considered

         10  by this Committee a number of times at previous

         11  public hearings.  Much testimony has been offered

         12  and many changes have been made to the bill to craft

         13  a better piece of legislation.

         14                 And today, I am pleased to report

         15  that the Committee will vote, is expected, I should

         16  say, to vote favorably on this bill with the support

         17  of the Mayor Bloomberg's Administration.  And I

         18  would like to thank the Administration and the

         19  Department of Transportation for their utmost

         20  commitment and cooperation in making this bill a

         21  reality.

         22                 I would also like to recognize the

         23  diligent pursuit of this legislation by the bill's

         24  prime sponsor, Council Member Alan Gerson, who we

         25  will hear from shortly. His admirable persistence
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          2  has led us to the fruition that we will witness

          3  today.

          4                 In terms of the substance of Proposed

          5  Intro. No. 185- A, the bill is essentially about

          6  accountability and the provision of information to

          7  communities that are inconvenienced by long- term

          8  street closures.  The bill sets forth a host of

          9  criteria and information that must be fulfilled and

         10  supplied by government to communities effected by

         11  long- term street closures.  Community forums are

         12  also mandated by the legislation.  The bill seeks a

         13  more open process with relation to street closures,

         14  as well as the prompting to have government better

         15  identify and alleviate the inconveniences and

         16  adverse impacts that come with a long- term street

         17  closure.

         18                 The second and third bills to be

         19  heard this morning are Intro. No. 351 and Intro. No.

         20  359.  Both of these bills seek to accomplish similar

         21  goals by obviating the need to feed the meters for

         22  parking spaces on Sundays.  I will rely on the

         23  respective sponsors of these bills, Council Member

         24  Gentile for Intro. No. 35,1 and Council Member

         25  Monserrate for Intro. No. 359 to explain in detail
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          2  the need and justification for these initiatives.

          3                 And the final item on today's agenda,

          4  and which by no means the least important, is Intro.

          5  No. 19, with Council Member Gale Brewer as prime

          6  sponsor.  This legislation is aimed at making it

          7  safer and more manageable for the blind and visually

          8  impaired to traverse our City's roadways.  The

          9  mechanism that this bill employs for accomplishing

         10  this is the use of audible pedestrian signals.

         11  These devices, as well as other available devices,

         12  known as accessible pedestrian signals interact with

         13  the blind and visually impaired in a manner that

         14  alerts them as to whether it is safe or not to cross

         15  the street.

         16                 The Committee expects the Department

         17  of Transportation to inform us today about the

         18  status and success of its fledgling, accessible

         19  pedestrian signaling program, as well as where the

         20  program is heading for the future.  As there are

         21  many types of technologies available for this

         22  purpose, with varying degrees of success, I hope

         23  that the Department will weigh in on what technology

         24  is best suited for implementation throughout New

         25  York City.
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          2                 I would like to thank each of the

          3  prime sponsors of the legislation we are hearing

          4  today for their hard work and vision in putting

          5  these initiatives forward. And now let me introduce

          6  my colleagues who have joined us today.  Members of

          7  the Committee, Council Member Joseph Addabbo from

          8  Queens; Council Member Diana Reyna from Brooklyn;

          9  Council Member Larry Seabrook from the Bronx; and

         10  Council Member Miguel Martinez from Manhattan.  And

         11  we are also joined by the sponsors of the

         12  legislation that we are hearing today, Council

         13  Member Alan Gerson, Council Member Vincent Gentile,

         14  Council Member Hiram Monserrate, and Council Member

         15  Gale Brewer.

         16                 At this time I will turn the floor,

         17  we are going to hear from Council Member Gerson,

         18  shortly after we hear testimony from the Department

         19  of Transportation.  I turn the floor over to Council

         20  Member Vincent Gentile, who has spoken with me at

         21  length about the legislation that he is sponsoring

         22  concerning the need to feed meters on Sundays, and

         23  what kind of effect that has on people throughout

         24  the City.

         25                 Council Member Gentile.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Thank you

          3  Mr. Chairman.  And again, Mr. Chairman, I want to

          4  thank you for your leadership in bringing this issue

          5  to the forefront.  You are a leader in many respects

          6  and you can add this to your list of bringing this

          7  issue of Sunday parking meters to the point of a

          8  hearing.  I also want to thank my colleagues,

          9  Councilman Monserrate for his Intro., also today,

         10  that we are considering, which also concerns the

         11  activation of parking meters on Sunday.

         12                 We are really here today to discuss

         13  another official government sanctioned harassment

         14  for New Yorkers, the activation of parking meters on

         15  Sunday.  There are now over 19,000 parking meters

         16  citywide with nearly 7,200 of those in the Borough

         17  of Brooklyn.  That is almost 40 percent in Brooklyn

         18  neighborhoods.  And taken together with those

         19  residents in the outer boroughs, where most New

         20  Yorkers live, represent the biggest burden that must

         21  be borne with this shortsighted initiative.

         22                 Today with these two Intros. We call

         23  upon the City and the Department of Transportation

         24  to remove Sunday meter regulations citywide.  Over

         25  the last three years, we, as New Yorkers, have been
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          2  hit with a single- family homeowner property tax, a

          3  smoking ban, increased subway fares and bridge and

          4  tunnel tolls, proposed tolls on East River bridges,

          5  removal of sanitation self- help bulk disposal

          6  sites, and a cascade of summonses from sanitation,

          7  police, traffic enforcement, transit, and other

          8  enforcement agencies.

          9                 The Sunday parking meters are just

         10  another episode in the continuing saga of harassing

         11  New Yorkers with another form of a ticket blitz.  My

         12  constituents, and those of my colleagues, view

         13  Sunday parking meters as nuisances and official

         14  harassment authorized by the City and this Mayor.

         15                 Clearly, the City and the Mayor just

         16  do not get it.  They have not gotten the message.

         17  Today we send that message, enough is enough.  These

         18  meters are an infringement on our constituent's

         19  right to enjoy a day of rest and leisure without

         20  having to carry around a pocket full of quarters.

         21  Sunday is in fact a day of religious worship for

         22  fellowship and a day to be with family.   Let us not

         23  turn Sunday into a day that like the six other days,

         24  New York City feels the need to feed its insatiable

         25  appetite for collecting revenue.  It is wrong and it
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          2  is offensive.  And for many, Sunday extends beyond

          3  the church service.  The day carries over the social

          4  and family gatherings, brunches, frolics in the

          5  park, and events of ethic clubs like the Greek and

          6  Italian social organizations in my district.  These

          7  activities, too, should be free from the worry and

          8  the anxiety of getting a parking ticket, or

          9  suffering the frustration of actually getting one

         10  and paying for such a ticket.

         11                 I think it is fair to say that we all

         12  understand the need of the City to raise revenue.

         13  But there is a way to do it, and there is a way not

         14  to do it.  Raising revenue with Sunday parking

         15  meters is not the way to raise money.  It is

         16  offensive and in opposition to all the things that I

         17  just listed that we know Sunday to traditionally

         18  reflect, religious values, family values, social

         19  values.  It is important that one day a week is

         20  preserved to permit local travel without the burden

         21  of cost and time restrictions.

         22                 With that, and with these Intros., I

         23  call upon the Mayor and the Department of

         24  Transportation to leave us alone on Sunday.  Enough

         25  is enough.  Mr. Chairman, in a city that never
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          2  sleeps, New Yorkers deserve a day off, and Sunday is

          3  that day.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

          5  Member Gentile.  Now we will hear from Council

          6  Member Hiram Monserrate.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank you

          8  Mr. Chair, and thank you again for bringing this

          9  matter to a hearing here at the City Council.

         10  Thanks to my colleague, Vinnie Gentile, from the

         11  great Borough of Brooklyn for his leadership on this

         12  issue also.  And I would like to say that many of

         13  the issues that my colleague just outlined are the

         14  very issues that we are dealing with, with respect

         15  to the bill and the suspension of having to feed

         16  those parking meters on Sundays.

         17                 I know that historically in the City

         18  of New York, I believe that it was in the 1950's,

         19  that parking meters were first installed in our City

         20  streets.  And it has always been historically a day,

         21  Sundays, a day off for the common New Yorkers,

         22  whether they were attending religious services or

         23  shopping, or just enjoying a lazy Sunday with their

         24  family and their friends.  And so many of the

         25  communities, like from my district in Jackson
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          2  Heights, where actually residential areas also have

          3  meters in the mixed- use areas, have to wake up

          4  early on Sundays, a typical day off, to feed the

          5  meters so they will not get a parking ticket in

          6  front of their homes.

          7                 I think that this is the right thing

          8  to do.  I think it was wrong to impose the parking

          9  regulations with respect to charging of meters on

         10  Sundays.  I think it is an additional tax on New

         11  Yorkers.  And I know that no one likes to pay these

         12  hidden and additional taxes. And I look forward to

         13  the day that we can liberate New Yorkers from having

         14  to pay those quarters on Sundays.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

         17  Member Monserrate.  Comments from Council Member

         18  Gale Brewer.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  The bill that

         20  we are talking about today is one that has real

         21  positive assets for New Yorkers.  I think that what

         22  it does is make us as pleased as we were the other

         23  day when we were all standing on 59th and Park, and

         24  59th and Lexington, at the Lighthouse.  And there

         25  thanks to the Department of Transportation, to the
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          2  Local Business Improvement District, to the

          3  participants, and the staff at the Lighthouse, there

          4  are devices so that when you cross Park Avenue and

          5  59th Street, and when you cross Lexington and 59th

          6  Street, the audible mechanism once you push it,

          7  actually indicates that it is okay to cross the

          8  street. And it says it is okay to cross Lexington.

          9  It is okay to cross Park Avenue.  And what we are

         10  asking, along with the support of the Department of

         11  Transportation, is to implement such devices around

         12  our city.

         13                 It is not only positive for those who

         14  are visually challenged.  It is positive for those

         15  who have any challenge crossing the street.  And the

         16  technology has changed.  In Boston, there is

         17  chirping.  And everybody who has met with us says,

         18  oh please Gale, we do not want chirping. Because in

         19  Boston apparently, there is chirping in one

         20  direction, and coo- coo in the other, and you do not

         21  know which direction you are going.  So the fact of

         22  the matter is given the technology that has been

         23  well researched by the Department of Transportation,

         24  we have the opportunity for taking advantage of that

         25  technology and implementing it in as many locations
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          2  as possible.  There are some logistics, as there are

          3  challenges in New York City, as there are always

          4  logistic challenges in New York City.  But the

          5  brilliant engineers at DOT will work with us.

          6                 Thank you very much Mr. Chairman for

          7  having the hearing and we look forward to the

          8  testimony.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

         10  Member Brewer.  We are actually at this time going

         11  to hear from Council Member Alan Gerson on Intro.

         12  185- A.  Council Member Gerson has to rush over,

         13  across the street, to a hearing of the Lower

         14  Manhattan Redevelopment Committee that he is

         15  supposedly chairing right now.  Council Member

         16  Gerson.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Timing is

         18  everything. And thank you Mr. Chair for your

         19  understanding.  The other hearing deals with the

         20  upcoming demolition of buildings.  And I do need to

         21  be there.  But I do need to be here because at long

         22  last, we are considering and presumably adopting

         23  Intro. 185- A, known in my district as the Park Row

         24  Bill.  This bill will at long last assure the

         25  community of Park Row, the community of Wall Street,
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          2  and the community of any street which is closed for

          3  a long- term, which is fully and totally closed over

          4  a protracted period of time, that the adverse

          5  impacts which they endure or will have to endure as

          6  a result of street closure are fully addressed,

          7  considered, and redressed to the extent possible by

          8  the City Government, which these residents and all

          9  residents have a right to believe is put in place in

         10  order to address just such concerns.

         11                 We have considered and discussed the

         12  merits of the significance of this bill, as you

         13  pointed out Mr. Chair, over several hearings of this

         14  Committee.  There is no need for me to reiterate the

         15  record.  I just want to briefly say that I concur

         16  with the Administration through, and specifically

         17  with the written testimony submitted by David

         18  Woloch, Deputy Commissioner of the Department of

         19  Transportation, that this bill is both good

         20  government policy and financially responsible.  It

         21  is important to note that this bill will include all

         22  street closures, including Park Row closed for any

         23  reason whatsoever.  That the requirements are

         24  crafted so that we can all be assured that there

         25  will be no compromises of security or security
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          2  interests as we go forward in ameliorating the

          3  adverse conditions created by street closures.

          4                 The bill sets forth procedures,

          5  whether through a universal access study, or through

          6  responses to concerns raised at a public forum, that

          7  all actual or potential adverse impacts, be they

          8  traffic, access, safety, economic, related to the

          9  TLC, the Tax and Limousine Commission, any

         10  legitimate concerns of the community will in one way

         11  or another be addressed through the procedures of

         12  this bill.

         13                 The procedures set forth timetables

         14  both for the enactment and the carrying out of the

         15  studies in the community forums.  One of the reasons

         16  for the duration of the timetables is that this is

         17  the first time that we are implementing this

         18  procedure.  This is a first in procedure for the

         19  City of New York.  And we understand the

         20  Administration felt that these timetables were

         21  required in order to be sure that the job was done

         22  properly.

         23                 I will just conclude by pointing out

         24  that these timetables are set forth maximum time

         25  limits and nothing prevents the Administration from
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          2  carrying out any of this work in a more expeditious

          3  process.  And I would certainly hope that in the

          4  case of Park Row with all that these residents have

          5  had to endure, that every effort will be made to

          6  carry out and implement this bill with respect to

          7  Park Row and Wall Street as expeditiously as

          8  possible.

          9                 Finally, Mr. Chair, I do want to

         10  acknowledge and thank the Administration,

         11  specifically, the good persons from the Department

         12  of Transportation and the New York City Police

         13  Department from whom I believe we will hear.  We did

         14  engage in intense good faith, but I believe always-

         15  amicable negotiations.  And we may still have

         16  different perspectives, but I certainly recognize

         17  the good intentions and the good faith of those

         18  departments, as well as Patrick at the Mayor's

         19  Office of Legislative Affairs.  I also want to thank

         20  and acknowledge the role of our speaker, Speaker

         21  Gifford Miller for his support and lending the

         22  support of the Speaker's Office, without which we

         23  would not have had the successful outcome.  Mr.

         24  Chair, I need especially to thank you.  I have said

         25  it on numerous occasions, and I know that I will
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          2  continue to make this point, that our City is better

          3  off because John Liu is a Council member, and

          4  because John Liu chairs our Transportation

          5  Committee.  Without you we would not be having this

          6  bill.  And I thank you for your leadership and your

          7  support.

          8                 And finally, with due respect to all

          9  other persons I mentioned, I must thank the

         10  communities of Park Row and Wall Street.  You

         11  endured the worst of 9/11.  You endured the adverse

         12  impacts of street closures.  It is your tenacity,

         13  your commitment to your neighborhood, your

         14  commitment to the future of our city, and to good

         15  government, which has brought about this good

         16  government bill, which we will enact today.

         17                 Thank you, thank you all, and I thank

         18  my colleagues on this Committee and on the Council.

         19  And I congratulate you and fully support the other

         20  bills being heard by this Committee today.  Thank

         21  you one and all.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         23  Member Gerson.  And without further ado, let me

         24  invite the Deputy Commissioner of the Department of

         25  Transportation, David Woloch and his colleagues Alan
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          2  Borock, the Director of Signal Engineering and

          3  Street Lighting, and Victor Rosen, Assistant

          4  Commissioner of the DOT Parking Bureau.

          5                 Deputy Commissioner, I would ask you

          6  if you would do us the favor of concluding your

          7  brief testimony of Intro. 185- A, and allowing us to

          8  take a brief pause so that we can take a vote on

          9  that.  And then continue on with your testimony on

         10  the other bills.  Would that be okay?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Good

         14  morning Chairman Liu and members of the

         15  Transportation Committee.  My name is David Woloch

         16  and I am the Deputy Commissioner for External

         17  Affairs at the New York City Department of

         18  Transportation.

         19                 Just jumping to 185- A, I am pleased

         20  to say that the Administration is here today in

         21  support of Intro. 185- A. This bill would require

         22  entities who seek to effectuate street closures of

         23  most publicly mapped streets for more than 180 days

         24  to undertake notification and review processes.  DOT

         25  and the Police Department work collaboratively with
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          2  the City Council to amend the previous versions of

          3  this Intro.  The current bill being voted on today

          4  is, as the Councilman said, both good government

          5  policy and financially responsible.

          6                 As I have stated previously, much of

          7  what the bill requires is already performed by

          8  various public and private entities for projects

          9  with significant community impact.  However, the

         10  Administration supports codifying these practices,

         11  to ensure that impacted communities will be well

         12  informed and will have an opportunity to voice their

         13  concerns in the event for such closures.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  And

         15  thank you for allowing us to take a vote because the

         16  rest of your testimony on the other bills is

         17  lengthy, and we will have questions on those other

         18  bills.  So thank you very much.

         19                 At this time let me say that we have

         20  also been joined by a member of this Committee,

         21  Council Member Sara Gonzalez.  And if there are no

         22  comments from Committee members, I would ask the

         23  clerk to call the roll, and I recommend, excuse me

         24  for one second we have to wait momentarily for a

         25  member to return to these Chambers.
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          2                 It is too bad that the weather is not

          3  as nice as it was yesterday.  It was a nice day

          4  yesterday.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I can do

          6  better than the weather on the filler buster, filler

          7  stuff, John Liu.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  While we are

          9  waiting for a quorum to be achieved so that I can

         10  call a vote, perhaps we will go back to the

         11  regularly scheduled hearing and ask the Deputy

         12  Commissioner to continue with his testimony.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I am

         14  happy to continue.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I am

         18  pleased to be here this morning.  And I would like

         19  to introduce Alan Borock, Director of Signal

         20  Engineering and Street Lighting, and Victor Rosen to

         21  my left, Assistant Commissioner of DOT's Parking

         22  Bureau. The items that are being heard, Intros. 351

         23  and 359 relating to suspension of Sunday parking

         24  meters and Intro. 19 to establish an accessible

         25  pedestrian signal program.  And I will address each
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          2  these in turn.

          3                 Intros. 351 and 359 would suspend the

          4  City's parking meters on Sundays.  Let me begin by

          5  explaining the function for meters.  The purpose of

          6  meters, regardless of which day they are in effect,

          7  is to turn over parking spaces so that more

          8  customers and other individuals can gain access to a

          9  particular parking spot in busy commercial areas --

         10  helping the motorists, the businesses and other

         11  entities in the area, and enhancing commercial

         12  activity.

         13                 The locations around the City

         14  designated for Sunday meter activation are areas

         15  that have long established commercial strips and

         16  where stores have been open for business on Sunday

         17  for many years.  While DOT expanded the Sunday meter

         18  program over the past two years, please note that

         19  many Sunday meters have been in effect for over a

         20  decade.

         21                 As a result of having meters in

         22  effect on Sunday, appropriate space turnover is

         23  assured, thereby affording maximum parking

         24  opportunities to the most motorists. This is

         25  especially significant given the time- limited
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          2  amount of parking spaces available in the City.  An

          3  additional major benefit of this program is that

          4  because of increased turnover, incidents of such

          5  serious parking violations as double parking is

          6  decreased and, as such, public safety is enhanced.

          7  And because spaces are now available to shoppers,

          8  vehicular circulation and traffic congestion, as

          9  well as pollution are also decreased, as motorists

         10  are not forced to drive around looking for spaces.

         11                 DOT recently conducted a Sunday

         12  survey of eleven- meter areas in Brooklyn, the

         13  Bronx, and Queens, comprising 6,000 meters, to

         14  ascertain space occupancy.  The results of this

         15  survey indicate that over 80 percent of these

         16  spaces, over 5,000 meters, were occupied.

         17  Additionally, of the 4,500 retail establishments

         18  located in these areas, 3,000, or about two- thirds

         19  were open for business.  In this context, it is a

         20  fact that almost seven out of every ten stores in

         21  these areas are actively engaged in business on

         22  Sundays.

         23                 In conclusion, the City's Sunday

         24  meter program provides a broad array of benefits to

         25  the general public and local commercial
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          2  establishments, and therefore the Administration

          3  does not support these two bills.

          4                 The last bill on today's agenda,

          5  Intro. 19 would require the City to establish an

          6  accessible pedestrian signals program.  I am happy

          7  to report that DOT already has an accessible

          8  pedestrian signal program in place and we have made

          9  great technological strides in the past year, which

         10  we will be expanding to many more locations,

         11  citywide.

         12                 I would first like to talk about how

         13  our program has evolved, and then discuss how we

         14  evaluate locations for installation, and then

         15  conclude with some general comments about the bill

         16  itself.

         17                 Since the 1950's the City has been

         18  installing signaling devices to assist the visually

         19  impaired.  These devices make intersections around

         20  the City more easily and safely navigated by

         21  individuals who are blind and partially sighted.

         22  The locations historically have been installed at

         23  selected locations citywide, generally near

         24  facilities for the visually impaired.  The

         25  technology in this area has evolved significantly.
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          2  The earliest technology utilized a simple buzzer

          3  sound to let the user know when the "walk" message

          4  was displayed.  The technology then evolved to

          5  versions called "audible pedestrian signals", that

          6  the Council member mentioned, that use bird calls

          7  and emit "cuckoo" and "peep" sounds depending on the

          8  direction of the crossing.

          9                 The latest in accessible pedestrian

         10  signal technology are devices that can be programmed

         11  to emit audible messages informing the user that the

         12   "walk" message is displayed for the specific street

         13  they are waiting to cross. They are wired to our

         14  pedestrian signals and can send the message

         15  continuously or upon activation of a push- button,

         16  which emits a ticking sound so it can be located by

         17  the user. We have seven locations city- wide that

         18  utilize the older audible pedestrian signal

         19  technology, four others existed using the old

         20  technology but were removed when the nearby

         21  facilities relocated, and we have three other

         22  locations that utilize the more recent state- of-

         23  the- art technology.  However, it is safe to say

         24  that the latest technology is what is desired by the

         25  visually impaired community, and which we will be
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          2  using going forward.

          3                 Last year, we installed the first

          4  devices utilizing this latest technology on the

          5  north crossing of the 6th Avenue at West 23rd

          6  Street.  After evaluating these locations and

          7  gaining feedback from their users, we have begun to

          8  expand their use.

          9                 I am happy to report that earlier

         10  this month DOT's Manhattan Borough Commissioner,

         11  along with Council Member Brewer, attended the

         12  dedication ceremony for the latest state- of- the-

         13  art installment at Park Avenue at East 59th Street

         14  and Lexington Avenue at East 59th Street near the

         15  Lighthouse International.  The City worked

         16  collaboratively with the Lighthouse and the project

         17  sponsor, the East Midtown Association.

         18                 Phase II of this project involves the

         19  installation of additional devices after the

         20  evaluation of the current installment is completed.

         21  This project serves a model public/private

         22  partnership that has allowed the City to do more

         23  with less -- and we are looking forward to partner

         24  with many more BID's and Associations across the

         25  City.
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          2                 Now I would like to touch upon how we

          3  evaluate locations for potential accessible

          4  pedestrian signal installments.  In 2000, the

          5  Federal Highway Administration Manual on Uniform

          6  Traffic Control Devices for the first time

          7  established guidelines and design procedures for the

          8  installation of accessible pedestrian signals.  And

          9  it is these Federal guidelines that we strictly

         10  follow.  The guidelines require an engineering study

         11  before approval, which should consider the following

         12  factors:

         13                 1.  Potential demand for accessible

         14  pedestrian signals;

         15                 2.  A request for accessible

         16  pedestrian signals;

         17                 3.  Traffic volumes during times when

         18  pedestrians may be present;

         19                 4.  The complexity of traffic signal

         20  phasing;

         21                 5.  And the complexity of

         22  intersection geometry.

         23                 In addition to following the criteria

         24  in the MUTCD, there are also other factors that must

         25  be considered in determining whether or not a
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          2  location is ideal, such as engineering constraints

          3  that may make a potential location problematic.  For

          4  example, the accessible pedestrian signals are

          5  designed to be attached to poles.  Many locations

          6  have the apex type of pedestrian ramp, or the ramp

          7  is located far from an existing pole, or a

          8  decorative type of pole is present upon where we

          9  cannot installation the devices.  In some cases a

         10  pole may not be located at a particular intersection

         11  and the existence of underground vaults, subway

         12  tunnels, or other street furniture makes it

         13  impossible to install one.  In addition, sometimes

         14  if a pole is there, it may be located too far from

         15  the pedestrian ramp.  Therefore, we do need to be

         16  cognizant that the engineering constraints do exist.

         17                 Next, I believe it is very important

         18  to highlight that DOT works collaboratively and very

         19  closely with the individuals the accessible

         20  pedestrian signals are designed to help.  Employees

         21  of DOT's Traffic Signal Division go out on location

         22  with the entity or individual making the request, we

         23  ask for their assistance with the engineering study,

         24  for feedback on where they would like the devices

         25  installed, and the type of device they would like
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          2  installed.  For example, whether it is activated on

          3  demand or whether it is on all the time.  I would

          4  also like to note that we are always happy to

          5  undergo engineering studies and evaluate locations

          6  for any requests that come into DOT.

          7                 Lastly, I would like to make a few

          8  comments on the bill itself.  First let me state

          9  that while DOT and the Administration support the

         10  legislation's intent, we do not want to be mandated

         11  by a bill that requires us to utilize specific

         12  technology, one that sets a quota and time frame, or

         13  one that contradicts the Federal guidelines that we

         14  utilize.

         15                 As we have seen, the technology in

         16  this field is constantly changing and moving

         17  forward.  By stating specifications with regard to

         18  technology within the bill would limit us from

         19  taking advantage of any future technological

         20  improvements.

         21                 Just as importantly, the legislation

         22  sets a quota and fails to acknowledge the FHWA

         23  guidelines that DOT adheres to.  The bill would

         24  require us to select ten intersections and install

         25  the devices at every crosswalk within each
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          2  intersection within 180 days.

          3                 However, while this is good

          4  intentioned, the selected locations to study may not

          5  meet the MUTCD criteria.  In addition, the MUTCD

          6  does not call for the devices to be placed at every

          7  crosswalk within an intersection, and as mentioned

          8  earlier, there may be engineering constraints

          9  present that could prove problematic for us to do

         10  so.

         11                 Again, I would like to point out that

         12  in all cases, we work very closely with the users to

         13  determine the ideal placement of the devices and

         14  also do not want to be held to standards that

         15  contradict what the Federal guidelines detail for

         16  placement.

         17                 Lastly, DOT cannot adhere to the

         18  requirement that the locations be selected and the

         19  devices installed within 180 days.  DOT needs ample

         20  time to access a particular location, undertake an

         21  engineering study, and ample time to consult and

         22  work with the users.

         23                 In summary, the technology in this

         24  field has evolved to such an extent in the last

         25  several years, that we now have devices that DOT and

                                                            31

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  the visually impaired community are comfortable

          3  with.  It is our intention to utilize this

          4  technology and expand the program so that the

          5  devices can benefit many more as they navigate the

          6  streets of New York City.  So while we support the

          7  goals of this bill, we ask that instead of pursuing

          8  legislation, that we work together in identifying

          9  potential locations and expanding the program.

         10                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         11  testify before you today.  And I would be happy to

         12  answer any questions at this time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Deputy

         14  Commissioner.  We do have a number of questions

         15  related to 351, 359, and 19.  I would ask now for a

         16  few minutes so that we can take our vote on Intro.

         17  185- A.  We also have two people who have signed up

         18  to testify on proposed Intro. 185- A, the Street

         19  Closures Bill, but both people have indicated that

         20  they are in favor and indeed that is what I am

         21  recommending to Committee members that we vote in

         22  favor of this bill.  So I would ask that these two

         23  individuals wait until after the DOT finishes their

         24  testimony and question answering before I call you

         25  up.
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          2                 At this time, we are taking a vote on

          3  Proposed Intro. 185- A, prime sponsor Council Member

          4  Alan Gerson, with regard to Street Closures in New

          5  York City.  I recommend that Committee Members vote

          6  yes on this important bill.  Will the clerk please

          7  call the roll?

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member Liu.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Addabbo.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Martinez.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Seabrook.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Sears.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Gonzalez.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of six in

         21  affirmative, zero in the negative, and no

         22  abstentions, the item is adopted.  Council members

         23  please sign the Committee report.  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you and we

         25  hold the role open for other committee members that
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          2  will be joining us later, only until the conclusion

          3  of this hearing today.

          4                 I want to congratulate the Lower

          5  Manhattan community and Council Member Gerson on the

          6  passage of this important bill through this

          7  committee, and we look forward to the ratification

          8  by the full City Council.

          9                 At this time we turn the floor back

         10  to our representatives from the Department of

         11  Transportation, who we have just heard from David

         12  Woloch the Deputy Commissioner, and now a number of

         13  members have questions.

         14                 Questions from Council Member

         15  Gentile.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Thank you,

         17  Mr. Chairman, and good morning Commissioner Woloch

         18  and all of those from the DOT.  Thank you for being

         19  here and thank you for participating.  I know you

         20  had a lot ground to cover today on four different

         21  items.  So I appreciate your efforts and willingness

         22  to participate.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Happy to

         24  be here.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Great,
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          2  great.  I do want to focus, though, on the bills, in

          3  particular, concerning the Sunday parking meters

          4  that are the bills 351 and 359.  And in reviewing

          5  your comments on those bills, it strikes me that the

          6  comments that you made are really limited to the

          7  fact that the parking spaces are needed for

          8  commercial purposes, and that it is that business

          9  concern and that business need, is the reason for

         10  the justification for the activation of Sunday

         11  parking meters.

         12                 My point and my question to you,

         13  Commissioner, is that there is a whole other concern

         14  that the people that I hear from, and I believe that

         15  Councilman Monserrate has heard from, and I believe

         16  Councilman Seabrook has heard from, in all our outer

         17  boroughs particularly, but also in Manhattan too, is

         18  that there is the issue of the activation of parking

         19  meters around and near houses of worship.  And it

         20  does not seem to me at this point, and maybe you can

         21  help me with this, that DOT has been willing to

         22  acknowledge that as being an issue, being a problem,

         23  and being willing to deal with the fact that there

         24  are meters that have to be fed around houses of

         25  worship in all five boroughs.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Let me

          3  raise a few issues in response.  First of all, DOT

          4  has been extremely cognizant of the concern that you

          5  raised over the past two years.  And one of the

          6  things that we have tried to do, and we have been

          7  able to do in a number of cases, including for a

          8  number of cases, in fact, that you had brought to

          9  our attention, as well as a number of your

         10  colleagues, is in cases where we had a one hour

         11  regulation, that was probably the most appropriate

         12  regulation given the level of activity on these

         13  corridors.  But given this issue concern about

         14  houses of worship, we were able to change the

         15  regulation to two hours. So, it certainly is an

         16  issue that we are cognizant of because

         17  representatives of communities have brought it to

         18  our attention.

         19                 But I would like to say further, that

         20  the idea is not just that parking meters serve

         21  business, parking meters serve hubs.  And I think

         22  that we would all agree that the commercial hubs

         23  throughout all of our neighborhoods are not just

         24  places where there are businesses; there are lots of

         25  other institutions, and lots of places that draw
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          2  citizens from around the City.  So they are not only

          3  businesses, there are doctors offices that people

          4  need to go to, there are libraries, there are

          5  community- based organizations,  there are elected

          6  official offices.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  On Sundays?

          8  We are talking about Sunday here.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Well,

         10  let me--

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Maybe other

         12  than a clinic, I do not think your family physician

         13  has office hours on Sunday.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Let me

         15  get to that.  So it is not just that businesses are

         16  served.  These corridors in general, are served.

         17  And again, many entities are open on Sunday.  And in

         18  fact, two- thirds of retail businesses in many of

         19  the neighborhoods where we have Sunday regulations

         20  are open.  They are open because there is a demand,

         21  people are coming and people are patronizing these

         22  entities.  It is not just for the business system,

         23  themselves. The businesses and the other entities on

         24  the streets are fueled by New Yorkers who go to

         25  these institutions.  And the idea of the parking
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          2  meter, contrary to what I think is many people's

          3  first instinct, is not to raise revenue.  It is a

          4  traffic tool.

          5                 If we didn't have parking meters

          6  throughout the City there would be very little

          7  turnover of parking spaces. And I think we would all

          8  be much more frustrated by the inability to park and

          9  the inability to use vehicles in the City.  And that

         10  includes on Sundays.  I think in many of the

         11  neighborhoods that we are all from, if we didn't

         12  have this regulation there would be much less

         13  turnover, and people who need to find spaces for

         14  whatever reason, would have a very hard time finding

         15  them.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  All right,

         17  and you have gone back to the issue of businesses

         18  and having the need there.  And I will get to that

         19  in a minute.  My point, again, to you, because I

         20  still have not heard it, is that the Administration

         21  does not seem to understand how offensive it is to

         22  people for this pay to pray type of situation.

         23  Where whether it is one hour, or two hours on the

         24  meter, the fact is that you are paying the City of

         25  New York to park there to go into a worship service.
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          2                 And in fact, many worship services

          3  last more than an hour, and then there are some

          4  post- worship activities like coffee hours, social

          5  gatherings, and that would require under your two-

          6  hour grace period of a two- hour meter, would

          7  require those people to go back and feed those

          8  meters again to be able to stay at those post-

          9  worship service activities.

         10                 So again, I am not getting the sense

         11  from you, from the Administration, from the Mayor of

         12  a real understanding of how offensive it is to

         13  people who worship on Sunday to have to pay to pray.

         14

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

         16  to say that people have to pay to pray is an

         17  exaggeration, in the sense that in many

         18  neighborhoods there is alternate side regulations on

         19  most streets abutting major commercial corridors.

         20  And in fact, alternate side regulations in the

         21  streets outside, are many houses of worship.  The

         22  point being that these are not metered spaces, but

         23  spaces with alternate side regulations that are

         24  often available in many cases.

         25                 And again, in many locations, if
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          2  there were not a meter in effect on Sunday, on a

          3  busy commercial hub, those spaces would simply be

          4  filled, and the first people to get there, perhaps

          5  people to get there Saturday night after the

          6  Saturday regulation ends, would be sitting there on

          7  Sunday.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Well you

          9  know and I know, Commissioner, and we have people

         10  from at least two boroughs here today that are going

         11  to testify to the fact that many of these churches

         12  are not in the middle of some big commercial strip.

         13  And yet, they have parking meters either in front,

         14  across the street, or on the side street of these

         15  churches.  So the fact is no matter how times we

         16  say, there are parking meters that are affecting

         17  churches that are not necessarily in the middle of

         18  any large commercial hub.  And I will point those

         19  out to you in my district, I am sure Councilman

         20  Monserrate could do the same, and many of us on this

         21  panel could do the same in each of out districts.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  But you

         23  know I could also point to your district on Fifth

         24  Avenue where we have hundreds of establishments that

         25  are open on Sunday that your constituents are
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          2  patronizing, and your constituents are driving to

          3  them and taking advantage of the meters.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  I am glad

          5  you mentioned Fifth Avenue.  Because I took a ride

          6  on Fifth Avenue on Sunday, the commercial strip in

          7  Bay Ridge.  I am going to hand you, I am going to

          8  ask the Sergeant- At- Arms to hand you this, the set

          9  of photos.  And I am going to pass a set out to my

         10  colleagues too, on either side.  And these are

         11  photos of Fifth Avenue that you mentioned; there is

         12  a commercial hub in my district.  And these photos

         13  were taken at 2:30 in the afternoon, this past

         14  Sunday, 2:30 in the afternoon.  And I will give you

         15  a second to take a look at these photos.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH?  I would

         17  imagine that there are other streets on this 30-

         18  block stretch of Fifth Avenue where we would - -

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Yes, let me,

         20    if we took photos of them,--

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  We would

         22  see a different situation.  Clearly there is a mix,

         23  and again, according to our count it is about, on

         24  Fifth Avenue, it is about, I think over 50 percent

         25  of the businesses are open.

                                                            41

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Well I will

          3  ask you, and this is probably a 10- block or 15-

          4  block of a commercial strip, probably during the

          5  week one of the busiest commercial strips in Bay

          6  Ridge, Brooklyn.  And I know our audience cannot see

          7  these, but my colleagues can up here.  Would you

          8  agree with me at looking at these photographs that

          9  they show at least two things, at least two things,

         10  one, that a majority of the stores on Fifth Avenue

         11  in Bay Ridge in this strip are closed at 2:30 in the

         12  afternoon on Sundays, number one, and I ask you if

         13  you agree with that?  And number two, if you look at

         14  these photographs, would you agree with me that they

         15  are not one, two, but maybe three, four, and in some

         16  cases, I saw as many as six metered parking spaces

         17  that were open, not occupied on Sunday afternoon at

         18  2:30 in the afternoon.  Would you agree with me that

         19  these photographs reflect the fact there are

         20  multiple metered spots that are open, and the

         21  majority of these photographs show that the majority

         22  of the businesses are shut on Sundays?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  As I

         24  said, a photograph shows you one thing, a

         25  comprehensive look at the entire corridor shows you
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          2  another.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  So you don't

          4  want to agree that these stores are closed?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  It looks

          6  like there are a number of stores closed on these

          7  streets.  It looks like there are a number --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  This is

          9  Fifth Avenue.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  It also

         11  looks like that most of the metered spots, when you

         12  look at all of the photos, are, in fact, occupied.

         13  Our survey found that 87 percent of the metered

         14  spots on a 30- block stretch from 67th to 96th

         15  Street were, in fact, occupied.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:

         17  Commissioner, I know what your survey said, you told

         18  us today.  But I am telling you what reality is

         19  showing us.  And reality is showing us, at least, in

         20  this part of my district, and again, I think this

         21  can be replicated throughout the different boroughs,

         22  that on Sunday afternoon businesses are closed for

         23  the most part, except if it is a busy commercial

         24  strip, like 86th Street in my district, I grant you

         25  that, businesses are open on 86th Street.  But here

                                                            43

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  on Fifth Avenue most of them are closed, and they

          3  are multiple, not one or two, but multiple metered

          4  spots that are opened.  And these metered spots now

          5  have Sunday parking regulations.  So your premise

          6  that you must keep the traffic moving for the

          7  businesses, because the businesses are operable, it

          8  is fallacious in the sense that the businesses eight

          9  are not open.  And "B" there are multiple spots to

         10  park.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I have

         12  to disagree with both of these points.  Our survey

         13  found that when we looked at about dozen corridors

         14  throughout Queens, Brooklyn, and the Bronx, where we

         15  have the Sunday regulations, 82 percent of the spots

         16  were occupied, and 66 percent of the establishments

         17  were open.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Okay, we are

         19  not going to agree on this, but you can rely on your

         20  survey, and you have the right to do that.  I have

         21  to rely on what I see on the street, and I believe I

         22  think that could be replicated in whether it is

         23  Queens, the Bronx, Brooklyn, or anywhere else.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I am

         25  sure you can find photos of individual blocks
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          2  throughout the City where most of the businesses are

          3  closed.  But I think what you need to do, is you

          4  need to look at the photos of all the blocks on that

          5  corridor.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  So you are

          7  saying though, so it is fine that we have multiple

          8  spots open, businesses closed, but it is fine that

          9  there is a requirement to pay that meter?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Again,

         11  if you look at it in its totality about four- fifths

         12  of the spots on these corridors are occupied.  And

         13  if you add up, I think you have one photo here that

         14  shows that, shows a number of spaces that are open,

         15  and the others, most of the spaces seem to be

         16  occupied.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  There is a

         18  spot, and I did not have the camera with me, but my

         19  survey on Sunday showed a spot that had six, six

         20  metered spots in a row open, six metered spots.  And

         21  that says to me that whatever survey you have done,

         22  you didn't include Fifth Avenue in Bay Ridge, and

         23  probably some of the other commercial spots in the

         24  residential parts of our neighborhoods in the five

         25  boroughs, where the businesses are not necessarily
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          2  open, and where there is no need to have metered

          3  parking to move the cars on a Sunday.  It is just

          4  not there.  Despite what your survey said, and I

          5  don't know where that survey was taken.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  As I

          7  said, Fifth Avenue was among the corridors that we

          8  looked at, and 530 businesses on the corridor, 292

          9  were open.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Well again,

         11  it is survey versus reality.  And I show you a

         12  picture of reality this past Sunday at 2:30 in the

         13  afternoon on Fifth Avenue.

         14                 Let me just move onto one other

         15  issue, and then I will turn it back to our Chairman.

         16    The other issue that I think in your comments that

         17  you really did not address, is the fact that you did

         18  say that in one of your answers that some of the

         19  activities that happened on Sunday draw people from

         20  all over to come to an area, a particular area.  And

         21  I agree with you on that when it comes to the social

         22  ethnic clubs that might be operating where they have

         23  events on Sunday afternoons, whether it be in Queens

         24  or in Brooklyn.  But you did not address that issue

         25  as a concern for the Administration of social or
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          2  family gatherings, or taking families to the park,

          3  or the ethnic or social clubs that meet on Sunday

          4  afternoons.  And you didn't address that in your

          5  remarks.  So I am wondering, does that not register

          6  on the concern of DOT that these people are also

          7  forced to pay Sunday parking meters?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  It is

          9  absolutely a concern.  And I think we would love to

         10  be able to have a specific regulation to accommodate

         11  everybody's need.  And to have regulations that can,

         12  you know, change from one time of day to another,

         13  but logistically, that is not possible.  We cannot

         14  do that with the meters, it would be very confusing.

         15

         16                 We live in a very dense city with

         17  lots of activity and lots of different people with

         18  lots of different needs.  And we have a very limited

         19  amount of curb space, that is the reality.  And we

         20  have a lot of people throughout the City that rely

         21  on vehicles, and need their vehicles to do whatever

         22  they are going to do, and they need to park those

         23  vehicles.  And it is very difficult to accommodate

         24  everybody's need.  And we are extremely cognizant

         25  that there are lots of different activities
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          2  happening on Sunday.  We are extremely cognizant of

          3  the ones you have raised, and again, we would love

          4  to be in a position to accommodate everybody.  But

          5  we do have this limited amount of space, and it is

          6  extremely difficult to accommodate everybody's need.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  It seems,

          8  Mr. Commissioner that that need was not a major

          9  concern prior to the extension of these parking

         10  meters on Sunday in residential areas of our City.

         11  And those activities also, those people who attend

         12  those activities, whether it be a worship service in

         13  the morning, or a social club in the afternoon, or

         14  just a frolic in the park with the family, or a

         15  family gathering, those needs are also, I think

         16  valid needs to have a day of leisure, a day of fun,

         17  a day of relaxation without having the need to worry

         18  about getting a parking ticket from the City of New

         19  York.  That is offensive, it is offensive to people

         20  to have to be harassed and bother by putting money

         21  in the meter. That is, and as Council Member

         22  Monserrate said, getting up and feed on in many

         23  residential areas for decades.  For not all of a

         24  sudden to be a great need that we have to keep

         25  moving cars doesn't seem to hold when you look at
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          2  some of these photographs, when you talk to people

          3  in these communities, when you hear from some of the

          4  witnesses that will come here, that it does not

          5  hold, your premise does not hold up.  And the fact

          6  is that the Administration continues to overlook how

          7  offensive this is to people.  That is a concern that

          8  we have, the need that we have, that people should

          9  have a day to relax and leisure.

         10                 And I am looking forward,

         11  Commissioner, to continuing this discussion with

         12  you, and with the Administration, to come to some

         13  understanding on what we can do, so that all of our

         14  concerns are covered.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Happy to

         16  continue to have those discussions.  I just would

         17  like to point out that I think for many New Yorkers

         18  they are equally offended whatever their

         19  destination, when they have to drive around for 15

         20  minutes, 20 minutes, a half- hour or more looking

         21  for a parking space.  That can be extremely

         22  frustrating, I am sure many of us in this room have

         23  experienced that before, and I think it is equally

         24  offensive to people when they have that experience.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Thank you,
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          2  Mr. Chairman.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          4  Member Gentile.  We have been joined by Council

          5  Member Diana Reyna, a member of this Committee, and

          6  at this time I would like to have the clerk call the

          7  roll for Council Member Reyna.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member Reyna.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I vote aye.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  That would be on

         11  Proposed Intro. 185- A.  Thank you very much.

         12                 We have questions from Council Member

         13  Monserrate.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank

         15  you, Chairman Liu.  Deputy Commissioner Woloch, let

         16  me try to clarify something.  I have heard your

         17  testimony, and you were quite eloquent in promoting

         18  the Administration's argument for logistical reasons

         19  regarding the meters.  And I think that this is a

         20  debate that we would all be enriched by and that we

         21  can engage in.

         22                 However, I think there is an

         23  underlying theme here which has not been brought to

         24  the table, and that is one aspect, and that is the

         25  aspect of revenue.  This measure was taken by this
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          2  Administration at a time when we needed to promote

          3  and ensure revenue production.  That is what this

          4  bill did, that is what this action did approximately

          5  about two years ago.  To not have that in this

          6  debate is quite disingenuous.  This was about

          7  producing another revenue stream, and we need to

          8  look at some of the things we did the same way that

          9  this Council and the City government has to look,

         10  has to review the issue of property taxes, we have

         11  to review some of the other measures that we have

         12  taken.  And one of those was implementing this fee

         13  or paying for praying, or whichever you want to term

         14  it, that was implemented on the City of New York.

         15                 Now, I remember when I was a child

         16  going to church on Sundays in the neighborhood,

         17  taken the family car, my father would drive the car,

         18  we would go to church, after that we would go to the

         19  restaurant in the area, maybe to the ice cream

         20  parlor, and never once did we ever consider having

         21  to pay for the meters.

         22                 I also remember going to Central Park

         23  on Sundays for a concert or an activity.  And being

         24  in the middle of Central Park and never having my

         25  father worry about running out to Fifth Avenue to
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          2  pay parking meters on a Sunday and take time away

          3  from his family on a day that was for leisure.

          4                 What I am trying to express to you,

          5  and what I would like for the Administration to

          6  understand, is that, we know that you have surveys

          7  and that you have done studies, but that

          8  historically in this City, Sundays was a day off for

          9  New Yorkers, whether you were going to church,

         10  whether you were going out to eat, whether you were

         11  going to Flushing Meadow Park to bring your children

         12  to the carousel, whether you were going to Central

         13  Park to hear a concert.  I think those are some of

         14  the human aspects of what this bill is attempting to

         15  do.

         16                 Now I just wanted to clarify that,

         17  because I don't want us to have this debate in a

         18  vacuum.  I don't think the people in this room want

         19  that.  I don't think the people in the City want

         20  that.  We want to be clear, this was about revenue

         21  production.  So now let's take a look at it and see

         22  what we can do about bringing it back.

         23                 Secondly, I want to talk specifically

         24  about some of your testimonies.  You said here that

         25  the location around the City designated for the
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          2  Sunday meter are areas that have long established

          3  commercial strips.  I think that in part, what

          4  Council Member Gentile has put forward in his

          5  testimony is that many of these strips are mixed-

          6  use, and the reality is, like where I live in

          7  Jackson Heights where you have many residents and a

          8  few business strips on 37th Avenue. I think that we

          9  need to look at the fact that yes, there are some

         10  businesses open on Sundays, but if you were to pick

         11  one day of the week where there are more businesses

         12  closed than others, it is Sunday.  Would you agree

         13  with that?  That is my question to you.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  In all

         15  likelihood, that is probably correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  I think

         17  that even in your chart you quoted saying, what were

         18  your specifics, 66 percent of the establishments

         19  were open, so that means 34 percent of them were

         20  closed on Sunday.  Is that not true?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Correct,

         22  correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  So I

         24  would say that if you went out and you surveyed

         25  Monday, would you agree that probably 100 percent of
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          2  those businesses were open, or Tuesday?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

          4  on Monday a lot of restaurants might be closed.  My

          5  guess would be that many more are open on Monday.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  So I

          7  think that we can illicit from your testimony that,

          8  in fact, the information that you have provided to

          9  us is that the one day of the week where there are

         10  more businesses closed than any other day is Sunday.

         11    Is that not correct?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  That is

         13  correct. But I think the premise of the question is

         14  that meters are an imposition, and if there was one

         15  day where we were to do a service for folks, and

         16  having in fact it would be Sunday.  But I think we

         17  would disagree with that premise.  That meters are

         18  helpful to all of us, and they are helpful seven

         19  days a week.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  I

         21  understand, they are also helpful for the City's

         22  revenues.  And I also want to say, again, the bottom

         23  line is, and we all agree on this fact, is that

         24  there is more stores closed on Sunday than any other

         25  day.  Which kind of in my position from this venue
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          2  weakens the argument trying to promote this as an

          3  entity.  In fact, we have business leaders here who

          4  are going to testify in support of this bill, along

          5  with different representatives from different

          6  denominations in churches, with the respect to the

          7  elimination.

          8                 You have also testified that in some

          9  of the areas, and underlying the some, in some of

         10  the areas that have been impacted specifically with

         11  regards to constituents that are worshipping on

         12  Sundays, where there have been one- hour meters, you

         13  or the Department, your agency has changed the one

         14  hour to two- hour meters.  Is that not correct?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Okay.

         17  The last time I went to some of the church services,

         18  those services lasted more than two hours, are you

         19  aware of that?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Yes, in

         21  some cases they are longer.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  I have

         23  actually visited a lot of the churches on Sundays in

         24  my district, not only do I attend, but I also visit.

         25    And I can tell you that I don't know of too many
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          2  church services that end in two hours.  So in

          3  essence again, we are talking about the issue of

          4  worshippers, sometimes hundreds at a time, having to

          5  leave their services to come and pay a meter,

          6  whether it is a one hour meter or two- hour meter.

          7  Can you understand, can the Administration

          8  understand the inconvenience that they are

          9  perpetuating upon the constituents in this City?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Again, I

         11  think the limited amount of curb space inherently

         12  inconveniences lots of us.  And what we are trying

         13  to do, recognizing that this is a very important

         14  need to communities throughout the City is to try to

         15  balance the many demands placed on the curb space.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Balance

         17  is important.  Balance is also recognizing that for

         18  over 50 years in the City of New York, City

         19  residents did not pay parking meters on Sunday,

         20  whether they were worshipping, whether they were

         21  going to the park, whether they were going to

         22  carousel, whether they were going to the ice cream

         23  parlor, or the restaurant.  I think that is also in

         24  the balance that we have to realize.

         25                 So in other words for over 50
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          2  somewhat this was the case in the City of New York.

          3  And City New York residents had "a day off" from

          4  having to pay the meters on Sunday.

          5                 So what this bill is trying to do in

          6  some respect, if you want to look at it from a

          7  nostalgia perspective, we want to bring back the

          8  happier day in the City of New York.  And we would

          9  love to hold hands with the Mayor and the

         10  Administration as we walk towards the happier day

         11  with no parking meters on Sundays.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  The

         13  nostalgia point, I think that it is an important

         14  one, and it is an interesting one, I would just like

         15  to comment on that.  I think the reality is that the

         16  City is different than it was 50 years ago.  I think

         17  50 years ago that percentage of businesses that was

         18  open on Sunday was probably much less.  I think more

         19  businesses over time have opened their doors on

         20  Sunday.  And they are doing that presumably because

         21  there is a demand from all of our constituents.  And

         22  there are lots of lots people every Sunday who are

         23  patronizing these establishments. Presumably if they

         24  weren't, the shops would close their doors.

         25                 So I think the nostalgia point is an
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          2  important one, but the City, in some ways has

          3  changed.  I think the attitude towards commerce is a

          4  little bit different than it was years ago.

          5                 I would also like to address the

          6  revenue issue. The folks within the Department that

          7  have driven this Sunday issue weren't our budget

          8  people per se, it was the folks in our traffic

          9  division, recognizing on the impact it would have on

         10  how curb space is used.

         11                 Now don't get me wrong, the budget

         12  folks in our agency and in OMB, I am sure, are happy

         13  that this revenue is coming in.  And I have to point

         14  out the revenue, in fact, was more than we

         15  anticipated, which is an indication that from a

         16  utilization perspective, that the arrangement we

         17  have is working.  So it is not that we are ignoring

         18  the revenue impact, and clearly from the City's

         19  perspective the revenue is important.  But what is

         20  driving this is the transportation impact, the

         21  impact on how curb space is used.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Let me

         23  say, and with this I will close, Mr. Chairman.  That

         24  I understand that perhaps, that your agency was the

         25  most pure at this in talking about remedying the
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          2  traffic situation.  Obviously, I don't know how pure

          3  the OMB folks were where they were doing the bean

          4  counting to figure out, not only, and this is a

          5  figure I am going ask you, not only the collection

          6  of the quarters on Sundays, I want to also know what

          7  the figure is on the summonses that are being given

          8  folks who are not paying parking meters on Sunday,

          9  do you have that figure with you?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I don't

         11  have that figure, that is something that we would

         12  probably need to get from the Department of Finance.

         13    But I do know this; we have not been getting calls

         14  from people getting summonses on Sunday.  Our

         15  Borough Offices get inundated with calls about many,

         16  many different transportation issues.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Have you

         18  gotten calls from some of the clergy associations or

         19  churches regarding the meters on Sunday?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Oh yes,

         21  absolutely.  We have gotten inquiries from members

         22  of the clergy; we have gotten inquiries from a

         23  number of elected officials.  Although, I have to

         24  say that the amount of feedback that we were

         25  getting, feedback that wasn't necessarily happy when
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          2  we put in the Sunday regulations, has decreased.

          3  There was much more that first year.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  I think

          5  that is pretty logical, right, that the biggest

          6  outrage is at the beginning, and then folks just

          7  kind of throw up their hands and say, what else can

          8  we do but pay the quarters, and keep paying these

          9  parking tickets.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Well,

         11  perhaps in some cases people found it easier to find

         12  parking spaces.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Well I

         14  don't know if that is the case.  We will be hearing

         15  testimony from some of those representatives,

         16  shortly; I think that they will greatly disagree

         17  with your statement.

         18                 Let me also join in the consensus of

         19  my colleague, that I look forward to trying to work

         20  out this deal, to ensure that, this bill rather, and

         21  to ensure that the Mayor and the Administration

         22  gives back to the City of New York a Sunday break.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         25  Member Monserrate.  We have questions from Council
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          2  Member Sears, then Addabbo, and then Seabrook.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you, Mr.

          4  Chair. Good morning, it is good to see you again.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Good

          6  morning.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I have to be

          8  very careful so that I don't ruffle too many

          9  feathers, because I promised I would behave myself

         10  this morning, my colleague.

         11                 I have a very different perspective

         12  of the meters, and I think that I should start by

         13  saying, yes, the City has changed, and we have

         14  commercial areas, residential, we have restaurants,

         15  we have religious institutions, and I am hearing

         16  about the churches on Sunday, but I can tell you

         17  that I have Synagogues, and they function on

         18  Saturday.

         19                 So I think the question is, that we

         20  have grown so enormously in the City of New York,

         21  and certainly in western Queens the growth in

         22  phenomenal.  I have commercial areas that are open

         23  Saturday, Sunday, the tri- state areas, I see one of

         24  the merchants here today from that area.  The fact

         25  is, one of the questions is, in your experience when
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          2  we have this mixed- use, and since parking is so

          3  difficult throughout any residential area in the

          4  City of New York, do you think that most of those

          5  meters, if they were quieted and not in effect on

          6  Sundays would be taken up by most of the residents,

          7  that would park there Saturday night and all day

          8  Sunday?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  In many

         10  cases I think that is correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  And in your

         12  opinion would that be kind of devastating to those

         13  merchants that are open, I am thinking of Manhattan,

         14  Brooklyn, the Bronx, Staten Island certainly has its

         15  share, and Queens, we have grown enormously in that.

         16                 So my question is one, do you think,

         17  or have you found, or had complaints that where

         18  meters have been suspended that they really have

         19  been occupied by most of the residents in that area

         20  and taking up all Sunday?

         21                 And secondly, would you entertain the

         22  idea since the issue of religious institutions has

         23  come about to seek from every Council member,

         24  because they are the best ones to tell you, where

         25  those institutions are, and look and do a survey as
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          2  to how many meters you would have to remove that are

          3  placed directly in front of these religious

          4  institutions, that is something you ought to think

          5  about.

          6                 And in terms of restaurants, I have

          7  merchants complaining to me because they have

          8  customers and they have to go out to feed the meter.

          9    I think they would have a bigger problem if they

         10  weren't able to rotate their customers.  I know that

         11  is certainly true in my area.  I don't promote the

         12  meters, and I think in many ways they are viewed as

         13  a punishment, but the fact is in the growing

         14  dynamics of communities, I think that you need to

         15  balance the quality of life, the commercial areas,

         16  and the residential areas, and listen to what seems

         17  to be a very severe outcry.

         18                 I know in my district there are

         19  meters in front of the Synagogue, because the

         20  Synagogue is in the heart of the commercial area.

         21  In front of the other religious institutions there

         22  are no meters, but obviously there are in others.

         23                 So my question is, would you

         24  entertain doing a study of where these meters are,

         25  in the religious areas, and getting that from all

                                                            63

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  the Council members that would make your task much

          3  easier, because they would be able to give that to

          4  you right away, and review this issue?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Yes, we

          6  would be happy to look at any information --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  But would you

          8  do a study?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Well - -

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I mean

         11  information is one thing, taking information and

         12  actually putting into action to see whether what is

         13  being asked, would be something that could

         14  absolutely be considered?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

         16  Absolutely.  In the sense that any information that

         17  Council members have about situations in their

         18  district where they think meters are placed

         19  inappropriately and the regulations are

         20  inappropriate, we are happy to look at it.

         21                 You know the one thing I would like

         22  to point out, is that I don't think it is just a

         23  question though of removing one or two meters.  We

         24  are happy to look at that, wherever there are cases

         25  where you feel it is warranted.  But I think the
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          2  more tricky issue is the regulation on the hundreds

          3  of meters on a corridor.  So taking out one or two

          4  meters, is something that can always happen, and we

          5  frequently are making those sorts of adjustments.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Most of these

          7  institutions take whole blocks, so it would involve

          8  more than one meter.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Right,

         10  but even -

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  In most cases

         12  it would involve the entire block.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Sure,

         14  again, any particular issue that any member of the

         15  Council would like to look at, we are happy to do

         16  that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  And although I

         18  think the merchants are probably are supportive of

         19  not having the meters in effect, I think you need in

         20  the study to address the consequences of that.

         21  Because I can say in my district, those meters would

         22  be taken up by all the residents who are not able to

         23  find parking spaces on that Saturday.  And that is

         24  far more detrimental to the commercial areas that

         25  are thriving on Saturday and Sunday, and certainly
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          2  in my area where they are tri- state, would be a

          3  major problem.

          4                 But I do think that you need to

          5  absolutely take into consideration what you are

          6  hearing today, and I think that needs to be

          7  addressed.

          8                 So I thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         10  Member Sears.  Before we hear questions from Council

         11  Member Addabbo, I would like to, we have been joined

         12  by Council Member Andrew Lanza, a member of this

         13  Committee, who is here to take a vote on Proposed

         14  Intro. 185- A.  Will the clerk call the roll?

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member Lanza.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  I vote aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK:  The vote now stands

         18  at 8 in the affirmative, 0 in the negative, and no

         19  abstentions.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         21  Questions from Council Member Addabbo.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you,

         23  Mr. Chair, and I want to commend you, the staff, and

         24  my other colleagues for their efforts on this piece

         25  of legislation.  And to DOT, thank you for your time
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          2  and testimony today.  I also thought it was quite

          3  odd that the revenue portion of this proposed

          4  legislation; the revenue impact was omitted from

          5  your testimony, Commissioner Woloch.  So if I may

          6  just delve into that a little bit more, briefly.

          7                 Your definition of revenue, when we

          8  talk about these meters on a Sunday, does this

          9  revenue include not only the money taken in by the

         10  meters, but also the summonses that are issued with

         11  regards to violations after an expired meter?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  It does

         13  not include the summonses.  I mean DOT's; the

         14  revenue that we collect is only the money that is

         15  fed into the meters.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Okay, and do

         17  you have a dollar figure for that money that is

         18  collected on a Sunday?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Sure.

         20  In Fiscal Year '04, our parking division in its

         21  entirety generated 115 million in revenue of which

         22  91 million was via on street meter collection.

         23  Sunday meters bring in approximately seven million.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Now you, I

         25  mean in the time of fiscal needs that the City is
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          2  in; I know that we are not out of the woods yet

          3  fiscally.  I still think, now even so, that we are

          4  talking about seven million dollars that would be

          5  taken out of the revenue portion for the agency,

          6  that that would be a concern for you with regards to

          7  this piece of proposed legislation, and that you

          8  would not mention it in your testimony.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  It

         10  absolutely would be a concern, but again, what is

         11  driving this is that it is sound transportation

         12  policy.  We are happy with the revenue, we want the

         13  revenue, we would be pressed to make up for that

         14  seven million somewhere else.  But clearly, I think

         15  we would all agree that the City needs every dollar

         16  it can. But that is not what is driving this policy.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  And do you

         18  have a number on the amount or the revenue or the

         19  dollar figure, for summonses issued with regards to

         20  the meters, possibly on a Sunday.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I don't.

         22    We would have to get that from the Department of

         23  Finance.  But you know, again, one barometer for us

         24  is what our folks in our Borough offices, in

         25  particular, are hearing from communities, and that
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          2  has not been a complaint.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  And lastly,

          4  although we talk here of, you know, hours of

          5  worship, places of worship on a Sunday, I would like

          6  to expand that also to Saturday.  I also, I have to

          7  recognize that there are hours of worship on a

          8  Saturday as well.

          9                 So would DOT entertain the idea, the

         10  practice of, or even legislation, if we were to

         11  relax the requirement of meters being fed both

         12  Saturday and Sundays solely around places of worship

         13  during the hours of worship, would DOT be amendable

         14  to that?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Again,

         16  part of the problem here is that houses of worship

         17  are interspersed throughout the City, and there is

         18  other activity around them. I think the houses of

         19  worship, in particular, that we heard from, vis- a-

         20  vis, this issue, or ones that are located on the

         21  commercial, the busy corridors themselves.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Okay, but

         23  specifically we are talking about hours of worship,

         24  days of worship, and we will probably have to

         25  assume, and I think that it is a good assumption
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          2  that those who are going to be parking right next to

          3  a house of worship, are those who are going into the

          4  house of worship.  So based on that slight

          5  assumption, and then again I think it is a good one,

          6  would DOT be amendable to relaxing the requirement

          7  of meters during Saturday and Sundays hours of

          8  worship, right directly adjacent to the house of

          9  worship?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Here is

         11  part of the problem, is that we cannot take a meter

         12  and say that on, you know, Monday through Friday you

         13  are going to have this type of regulation per se two

         14  hours on Saturday, it is going to be an hour on

         15  Sunday, it is not going to be in effect in the

         16  morning like the other places, but it will be in

         17  effect in the afternoon.  It would be great to have

         18  that flexibility. But the meters themselves and the

         19  amount of signage that would be, I mean people

         20  already find our signage confusing from time to

         21  time, which we are the first to acknowledge.  I

         22  think that reflects the complexity of trying to

         23  parcel out curb space in as equitable a manner and

         24  as fair a manner as possible.  To add on an extra

         25  layer of complexity, leaving aside for a sec, that
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          2  we cannot really do that with the meters, would be

          3  extremely confusing.  Ideally, yes, but it is not

          4  something that logistically can be done.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Considering

          6  that we are only talking about two days out of the

          7  seven- day week, and that we are only talking about

          8  limited hours, hours of worship, and considering

          9  that DOT is an expertise when it comes to signage on

         10  poles, I firmly believe that this can be done.  I

         11  think it is feasible, I think revenue wise it is

         12  minimal, and I think it could be done.

         13                 And I would hope that in the future

         14  DOT would acknowledge either legislation or the

         15  practice of limiting hours of worship, Saturdays and

         16  Sundays in meters that are directly adjacent to the

         17  houses of worship.

         18                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

         20  Member Addabbo.  We have questions from Council

         21  Member Larry Seabrook.  And I would like to

         22  acknowledge that we have been joined, we have the

         23  presence of the Honorable Reverend Rubin Diaz, who

         24  is a State Senator from the Bronx.  Welcome back to

         25  these Chambers, Senator Diaz.
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          2                 Council Member Seabrook has also been

          3  speaking about the issues and the problems related

          4  to the parking meters on Sundays, particularly in

          5  the neighborhoods that he represents, and Council

          6  Member Seabrook.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Thank you

          8  very much, Mr. Chairman.  Commissioner just a couple

          9  of questions, but also some concern is that you

         10  raised the issue about the two hour meters.  I am a

         11  Baptist and I have yet to see a pastor go beyond

         12  three hours, but two hours, he is going to be on two

         13  hours.  So it is very hard.  There are a number of

         14  churches, house of worship, next to my office that

         15  have the meters.  And it is a real serious problem.

         16  You don't get a lot of the complaints now that you

         17  did from us because we have told people that we are

         18  working on this to work it out.  They still get

         19  tickets; they still have to run out of a service, in

         20  the middle of a service to run out to feed the

         21  meters, which is an embarrassing situation that they

         22  have.  And they are in the middle of their service,

         23  when they have to run out, look at a meter, and each

         24  week, someone comes to my office from the church

         25  next door and the church down the block that they
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          2  got a ticket.

          3                 And in some cases we have written

          4  letters, and some instances these were seniors that

          5  I actually paid the ticket myself.  So I think

          6  something has to be done, and you really have to

          7  look at where the meters and where some of these

          8  houses of worship, right directly in front, and it

          9  creates a tremendous problem, and church service

         10  goes beyond two hours in most of those cases.  And I

         11  think it would behoove you to take a look at that

         12  and to deal with some sensible adjustment at the

         13  house, that needs to be addressed.

         14                 The other thing is, is this the first

         15  time that Sunday metering has ever taken place in

         16  the City of New York?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  No, it

         18  is not, in fact, there has been a number of places

         19  throughout the City that previously had meters in

         20  effect on Sunday.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  And that in

         22  front of house of worship?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I don't

         24  know per se, I mean my guess would be, given how

         25  many houses of worship there are throughout the City
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          2  that there were probably some that were impacted.

          3  My colleague points out that in front of most houses

          4  of worship, themselves; there is usually a no

          5  parking regulation.  But we don't know per se, but I

          6  would imagine that in some of those places where the

          7  seven- day regulation has been in place for some

          8  time, that there were some houses of worship

          9  impacted.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  During this

         11  period in which this has taken place, was it ever a

         12  time that it was actually removed and discontinued

         13  this Sunday parking, in previous years?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Not that

         15  we recall from some of those previous locations.

         16  Over the past couple of years as this issue has come

         17  up, there have been a few locations where we have,

         18  in fact, taken out meters.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  These were

         20  meters that were used during a period on Sunday, at

         21  close to or thereof houses of worship that were in

         22  existence that actually you have had the opportunity

         23  to remove that and the use of the meters?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Yes, I

         25  think within the past two years as concerns about
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          2  meters, particularly in terms of the seven- day

          3  regulation had been brought to our attention, and we

          4  have gone out and taken a look at the installation.

          5  We have removed a few meters in some cases.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  So

          7  therefore the possibility exists in your agency view

          8  that this is somewhat of an entrenchment where the

          9  church, and it is directly in front of the church;

         10  perhaps, something could be done to resolve that

         11  situation?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  We are

         13  always happy to look at particular situations, and

         14  it wouldn't, I think it may not address the larger

         15  concern, because certainly in so many house of

         16  worship there are so many people that are attending.

         17    But it is perhaps something that could help, and

         18  it is something that we are happy to look at.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Because

         20  there, the reason that I raise this issue that there

         21  has to be some looking at is because the church

         22  directly next door to me, and there are meters lined

         23  up right in front of the church.  And I would hope,

         24  I think we sent a letter, but I would hope that that

         25  situation could be reviewed so that you will see
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          2  that, that meter should not be where its location

          3  is, directly in front of the church.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  That is

          5  certainly something we can look at.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  So I will

          7  be forwarding the letters to you, in reference to

          8  dealing with that situation.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  That

         10  would be great.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Thank you

         12  very much, Mr. Chairman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         14  Member Seabrook.  Those are all the questions for

         15  the Administration concerning Intros. 351 and 359.

         16                 I would now like to turn the floor

         17  over to Council Member Gale Brewer who has questions

         18  for the Department of Transportation with regard to

         19  Intro. 19. Council Member Brewer.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

         21  very much for holding this hearing, Mr. Chairman.

         22  And I also want to mention for the record that the

         23  Lighthouse has submitted a letter in support of this

         24  bill.  I want to indicate too that with the Jewish

         25  Guild for the Blind, a wonderful institution on the
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          2  West Side that first brought this notion to my

          3  attention, and Camellia Sisco (phonetic) from our

          4  office is the person who has been focused on it.

          5                 I know that time is of the essence,

          6  so let me try a couple of questions.  I know that we

          7  have met with DOT over this topic, and I want to

          8  thank each and every one of you for your input.  But

          9  my question is what criteria are used by your agency

         10  to analyze intersection replacement of these

         11  devices?  I know you indicated sometimes it is where

         12  there is an institution that has people who might be

         13  going and coming who will take advantage of it.  But

         14  I wanted to know if there was any other, because

         15  when we first submitted this bill about two years

         16  ago, we didn't know, nor did the people who are part

         17  of some of these institutions that you had, albeit,

         18  lower tech versions of the current APS.  Maybe at

         19  some point we should show this wonderful device over

         20  here, which I see.

         21                 But the fact of the matter is, how do

         22  you analyze the intersections?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

         24  that probably the most critical component here is

         25  whether there is a specific demand for it.  But I
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          2  would like to turn this over to Alan, Alan Borock

          3  who can run through more precisely how we do that

          4  assessment.

          5                 MR. BOROCK:  Okay.  Our Department

          6  uses the federal manual on uniform traffic control

          7  devices as a guideline for the installation and

          8  evaluation of all traffic controls.  Starting in

          9  2000, the 2000 edition of the MUTCD, as we call it,

         10  established guidelines for the evaluation and the

         11  design of accessible pedestrian signals.  The 2003

         12  version of the same manual also refined it to some

         13  degree, and that is basically the manual used to

         14  evaluate these locations.

         15                 There are several issues that we look

         16  at that if we are, that there is a demand for a

         17  units, are there a large number of visually impaired

         18  people using the intersection.  We look at,

         19  obviously, the traffic volumes and the pedestrian

         20  volumes at the intersection, the existing signal

         21  phasing, and the geometry of the intersection to see

         22  what problems it may create for all pedestrian

         23  users, as aside from visually impaired pedestrian

         24  users.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  We
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          2  understand that the manual, the reason that I ask

          3  this is because I don't think that there is a lot of

          4  notification that if a community would like to have

          5  such an APS that they could work with us to do so,

          6  and that is obviously why we want to, you know, on

          7  our end, we want to try to create some legislation,

          8  because we want to make it clear that the

          9  opportunity exists.

         10                 So my questions is, in that you have

         11  a manual and there are certain guidelines, how do

         12  you tell the public, how can interested New Yorkers

         13  indicate that this is a location that would make

         14  sense from their perspective for an APS?  Obviously,

         15  you have some institutions or schools, that are

         16  working with those who are visually challenged.  It

         17  is perhaps clearer, but there are many individuals

         18  living throughout the community who might take

         19  advantage of this. How does the public know that

         20  such a device exists and that you might be willing

         21  to put one in their community?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  You know

         23  I think that is a great question.  I mean the easy

         24  answer is they can, of course, contact us.  But I

         25  think to answer your question sort of alludes to,
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          2  perhaps now that is not enough.  This is a new

          3  program, and there are probably many people

          4  throughout the City who are not aware of it.  And I

          5  think --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  My colleagues

          7  weren't, for instance.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Right,

          9  this may be a great think for us to partner with

         10  you, Council member, and perhaps we can get

         11  information about the program to all the community

         12  for instance, and I think it is something that we

         13  would be happy to work with you on.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Exactly why

         15  we need a bill, to be able to make sure that it

         16  happens.  Okay?

         17                 The other question that I have is

         18  regarding the fact that when you put in an APS in a

         19  community, in that, when we, you know pass

         20  legislation, and we have information available to

         21  the public.  Do DOT employees, are they trained

         22  regarding the techniques taught to individuals?  In

         23  other words, who is responsible for training the

         24  school or institution, or even the community as to

         25  how this device would be an asset?  Because it isn't

                                                            80

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  something that you just put up and people push the

          3  button, it needs a little more, and who actually

          4  pays for that, or participates in that training?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Well my

          6  understanding so far is the institutions that we

          7  work with, in particular, the Lighthouse, we have

          8  relied on their expertise.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  But if we are

         10  to do this on a larger scale, that is why I am

         11  asking.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Yes,

         13  look, I think that is something, again, we are sort

         14  of at the beginning here, because we finally have a

         15  technology, unlike the folks in Boston where, I

         16  think, a lot of us are on board with this

         17  technology.  And I think there are challenges in

         18  terms of identifying the best way for us to partner

         19  with the institutions and other groups like BIDS in

         20  terms of not just figuring out where they are

         21  located, but figuring out how they best can be

         22  utilized, and how folks can best be trained.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  And what are

         24  some of the challenges?  I know you mentioned the

         25  poles, and there could be a volt underneath.
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          2  Obviously, if you have a traffic signal that isn't

          3  close to the curb cut, you cannot push a button

          4  because there is no pole, et cetera.  So what are

          5  some of the challenges in terms of location that are

          6  logistical or structural, I guess?

          7                 MR. BOROCK:  Okay, at some of the

          8  intersections that we have already done, and I

          9  physically was out in the street, or showed

         10  photographs to some of the people who are in this

         11  room, and we actually walked around the intersection

         12  to see exactly where the pedestrian would be

         13  standing, you know the direction that they would be

         14  crossing, and physically we had an existing signal

         15  pole.  So theoretically if you wanted to cover all

         16  four crossings of the intersection, you may need two

         17  poles at each corner, because you would be crossing

         18  north/south or east/west.  And typically we have

         19  only one signal pole and/or streetlight pole at the

         20  corner.  So that may be good to cover one crossing.

         21  But because a pedestrian ramp may be around the

         22  corner, it would not be good for that crossing.  So

         23  we physically have to install another signal pole,

         24  relocate the pedestrian signal to that pole, and

         25  install another accessible unit on that pole.
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          2                 Actually at the intersection of Park

          3  Avenue and 59th Street where we installed the units,

          4  we did have to install another pole there, because

          5  of the wide center median on Park Avenue, we had a

          6  signal pole on one curb, on the east curb, but

          7  because of the wide median a pedestrian could

          8  potentially be crossing the other way and be on the

          9  west curb, where there was physically no place to

         10  access the unit.  So we physically installed another

         11  signal pole at that intersection. And this is just

         12  to cover the north crossing of one location; we had

         13  to install a pole.

         14                 From a structural standpoint, we find

         15  a location that is ideal to put a unit and install a

         16  pole, but underground conditions may make that

         17  problematic, if it is basements - -

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  We just hire

         19  Crystal.

         20                 MR. BOROCK:  Well that is a thought.

         21  There may be vaults or subway gratings, or some

         22  other infrastructure that makes in physically

         23  difficult and/or impossible to get another signal

         24  pole there.  But these are the kinds of things we

         25  would work with or around with the users to say, you

                                                            83

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  know, we can cross here, may not be able to cross

          3  here.  We can put a pole here, and those are the

          4  kinds of things we have done at the location that we

          5  have chosen.  We have actually gone out and looked

          6  at them and said, you know we can do this here, or

          7  possibly cannot do this here.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Obviously,

          9  New York City is more pedestrian city, perhaps

         10  busier.  But are there other perhaps, international

         11  cities that embrace any of this new technology, or

         12  would we be one of the first?

         13                 MR. BOROCK:  To my knowledge the

         14  birdcall units are units around the world.  And I do

         15  believe that people are starting to use these units

         16  as well.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So in other

         18  words, it is, but do the, I don't know this, but do

         19  the bird call units also need the, they go up more

         20  automatically, and they don't need the buttons, or

         21  do they need the extra pole that could be a

         22  challenge for those places as well?

         23                 MR. BOROCK:  Again, it depends on how

         24  you want the unit to operate.  If the unit is

         25  operating every time the walk message comes on, that
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          2  makes the application a little simpler.  The

          3  drawback is the sound will be going 24 hours a day,

          4  seven days a week, --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  We don't want

          6  that.

          7                 MR. BOROCK: - -  which would be a

          8  problem for nearby residences.  Because we are using

          9  the button and it comes up on demand, that is where

         10  we really have to then consider exactly where the

         11  pole placement is.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  What

         13  is the cost approximately of the units?

         14                 MR. BOROCK:  The units themselves are

         15  approximately $500 a piece.  Obviously, if you

         16  purchase them on a larger scale the unit cost will

         17  go down.  If we have to install additional

         18  infrastructure and poles, and we are trying to cover

         19  all four crossings of an intersection, we could be

         20  looking at, possibly as much as $5,000 per

         21  intersections.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, and in

         23  terms of the federal manual, what would be some of

         24  the examples of where they, what they would indicate

         25  as their way of installation?  In other words, what
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          2  kind of guidelines are we looking at that mandate

          3  that we do things in a certain way?

          4                 MR. BOROCK:  Well there are

          5  guidelines --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  And why can't

          7  we put them everywhere that we could, given the

          8  affordability?

          9                 MR. BOROCK:  Well because the manual

         10  does specifically mention that there should be a

         11  demand for the unit.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  A demand for

         13  the unit.

         14                 MR. BOROCK:  A demand for the unit.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Well you are

         16  very good for creating demand for things.  I just

         17  want to let you know that.  Thank you, okay, demand

         18  for the unit, yes.

         19                 MR. BOROCK:  That there be, you know,

         20  a large number of pedestrians at the intersection.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, we have

         22  lots of pedestrians in New York City.

         23                 MR. BOROCK:   But some intersections

         24  don't.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  That is true.
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          2    That the signal, that the intersection geometry be

          3  considered.  Is it a very wide median, are there

          4  center medians, are there traffic islands, those are

          5  the kinds of things that are difficult to negotiate

          6  even for any pedestrian.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, when

          8  you put in a new street, it is my understanding, or

          9  there is a renovation or restoration, you often put

         10  in curb cuts.  That is a terrific asset to our City.

         11    Is it possible that you could also think as long

         12  as the mandates as listed in the federal guidelines

         13  are met to also include the APS; is that something

         14  that is being consider?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

         16  the issue would be the demand issue.  So if it were

         17  a place where we knew there was a demand, and

         18  hopefully, we would sort of be aware of this ahead

         19  of time, because there would be a degree efficiency

         20  to come in and do it while there is reconstruction

         21  happening as opposed to later on, that is something

         22  that we would be happy to look at.  But I don't

         23  think it is a matter of course every time there is a

         24  reconstruction.  Because there wouldn't necessarily

         25  be that demand, but would say you think some of
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          2  these other criteria, a lot of pedestrian

          3  necessarily, even though it is signalized.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, I want

          5  to thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I think there is a lot

          6  more discussion that can take place on this bill.

          7  And I look forward to working with the agency, and

          8  many people here in the audience, as well as you and

          9  your staff.  I can promise you that this discussion

         10  has created even before we get here today, has

         11  generated a lot of thought.  And I think it is one

         12  of these kinds of bills that the City Council, why

         13  one gets elected, and we hope that we can come to

         14  some agreement, because this is just like the curb

         15  cuts and many of the other work.  Those who pushed

         16  88 over the years have brought to our city and our

         17  country; this is another example of helping the

         18  individual.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         21  Member Brewer for bringing this issue to the

         22  forefront, and I know you have been working on this

         23  for a couple of year now.  I want to thank you,

         24  personally, for being patient and allowing us to get

         25  through our heavy transportation docket to finally
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          2  to get to this issue.  And I know that this is an

          3  important issue to you and your constituents, and we

          4  will certainly give it full and due consideration.

          5                 I also want to thank the Department

          6  of Transportation for joining us this morning and

          7  spending quite a bit of time with us.  And we do

          8  look forward to working together with you on the

          9  three bills that we did not vote on today.  Thank

         10  you.

         11                 At this time I would like to invite

         12  Michael Rossmy representing Brooklyn Borough

         13  President to provide us with his testimony.  Shortly

         14  after Mr. Rossmy, is John Ost still here?  He is no

         15  longer here, so after Mr. Rossmy testifies, we will

         16  hear from a panel of witnesses on Intro. 19, thank

         17  you.  Please proceed, thank you for joining us.

         18                 MR. ROSSMY:  Thank you, Chairman Liu.

         19    Good morning, my name is Michael Rossmy, and I am

         20  Deputy Director for Transportation to Brooklyn

         21  Borough President Marty Markowitz.  Although, the

         22  Borough President is unable to be here today, he has

         23  asked me to submit this testimony on his behalf.

         24                 The Borough President wants to thank

         25  the Committee on Transportation for holding this
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          2  hearing on the Council's local law to amend the

          3  Administrative Code of the City of New York with

          4  regard to audible pedestrian signals, Intro. 19, and

          5  the suspension of Sunday parking meter regulations,

          6  Intros. 351 and 359.  While the Borough President

          7  support the three measures under consideration

          8  today, he has concerns about their implementation.

          9                 Within that context, I want to

         10  appreciate Commissioner Woloch's comments

         11  specifically the Commissioner's reference to updates

         12  of the Manual of Uniformed Traffic Code Devices.

         13  And with regard to feedback from user of the devices

         14  under discussion here today.

         15                 With regard to the audible pedestrian

         16  signal program, Marty Markowitz visited Hong Kong.

         17  This addresses one of the questions that was raised

         18  earlier.  The Borough President visited Hong Kong in

         19  1998 and was pleasantly surprised to personally

         20  observe such a system, where auditory cues are given

         21  to pedestrian when the pedestrian signal phase turns

         22  green.  The Borough President believes that such a

         23  system should be emulated in Brooklyn and the rest

         24  of New York City.

         25                 The Borough President is aware that
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          2  the Department of Transportation currently has a

          3  program for audible pedestrian signals and that

          4  newer technology has been implemented in Manhattan

          5  as part of a pilot program for the blind and

          6  visually impaired.  The blind and visually impaired

          7  deserve our consideration to increase their mobility

          8  and to provide them the opportunity to more safely

          9  participate in society and the life of the City.  To

         10  that end, we should eliminate the barriers to these

         11  opportunities.  On behalf of the residence of

         12  Brooklyn, Marty Markowitz recommends that the

         13  audible pedestrian signal program provided for in

         14  the amended title 19, of the administrative code

         15  should be established on the principles of need and

         16  equity.

         17                 According to year 2000 data from the

         18  State Department of Motor Vehicles, Brooklyn

         19  accounts for 31 percent of the New York City

         20  population, 26 percent of the City's drivers, and 24

         21  percent of the City's registered vehicles. Yet,

         22  Brooklyn has the largest number of vehicle crashes,

         23  30 percent, and the largest number of pedestrian

         24  accidents, which account for 33 percent of the

         25  City's total.  Marty Markowitz's concern for safety
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          2  is longstanding.  A Traffic Calming Project is being

          3  implemented after a comprehensive study funded by

          4  the Borough President's Office.  The Borough

          5  President's Office also undertook a

          6  pedestrian/traffic safety mitigation project in

          7  cooperation with the Brooklyn Borough Commissioner.

          8  To that end the Borough President looks to this

          9  Committee to give her, Lori Ardeto (phonetic), the

         10  mandate to do an even better job.

         11                 Given these statistics and concerns,

         12  Marty Markowitz believes that Brooklyn should

         13  receive its fair share of this program.  Thus, the

         14  Borough President supports the program outlined in

         15  the proposed amendment and believes that its

         16  implementation should be governed by specific

         17  criteria, or additional criteria, beyond those,

         18  which I think Mr. Woloch, mentioned.  For example,

         19  the determination of the location selected for this

         20  program should be based on the concentration of the

         21  visually challenged residence, and the location of

         22  the facilities that are frequented by them.  To

         23  ensure the selection of appropriate intersections,

         24  there selection should be undertaken in consultation

         25  with the blind and visually impaired community.
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          2                 The Brooklyn Borough President would

          3  also like to comment with regard to the proposed

          4  suspension of parking meter regulations on Sunday,

          5  Intros. 351 and 359.

          6                 Marty Markowitz is aware that as a

          7  result of the City's need for additional revenues,

          8  regulations governing the use of parking meters in

          9  certain commercial areas were recently expanded to

         10  include Sunday.  At least 195 commercial corridors

         11  have been identified in Brooklyn alone.  The

         12  corridors serve local and borough- wide functions

         13  and are located adjacent to residential

         14  neighborhoods.  On Sundays, these areas are more

         15  dependent on private vehicular travel than during

         16  the weekdays, because transit service is much less

         17  plentiful.  In addition, many of the older

         18  commercial areas, such as in Downtown Brooklyn, or

         19  Williamsburg, or other areas, are also home to

         20  houses of worship, as was pointed out here earlier,

         21  which depend on curb parking for their worshipers.

         22  The Borough President has received recurring

         23  requests from various congregations for assistance

         24  in having Sunday parking meter regulations modifies

         25  or eliminated, so that their free curb parking is
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          2  not displaced from the immediate vicinity of the

          3  churches.

          4                 Marty Markowitz believes that the

          5  imposition of curb metering on Sunday in those areas

          6  is not only an imposition on recreational and social

          7  travel, but effects the cost of doing business in

          8  Brooklyn, and disadvantages local shopping in

          9  Brooklyn to the benefit of newer and larger regional

         10  commercial establishments, which are often located

         11  outside of the City.

         12                 The Borough President has been

         13  advised that some of the commercial corridors

         14  referenced above currently have meter regulation

         15  suspended on Saturday.  While the Borough President

         16  believes that the suspension of these regulations on

         17  Sunday should not come at the expense of relaxing

         18  the current suspension in some areas on Saturdays.

         19  Marty Markowitz supports the measures, which call

         20  for the suspension of metered parking on Sunday, as

         21  well.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Mr.

         24  Rossmy.  I would like to call up the first panel to

         25  testify on Intro. 19. We have Alexander Wood, Ken
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          2  Stewart, Susan Scheer, and Michael Godino, please

          3  join at the witness table.

          4                 I want to thank the public for being

          5  very patient with us this morning.  There was quite

          6  a bit of time spent in the interchange with the

          7  Administration, the representatives from the

          8  Department of Transportation as is necessarily so.

          9  We also have a hearing that is coming in, another

         10  hearing that begins at one o'clock, and so in the

         11  interest of being able to hear from everybody, I

         12  would like to ask all witnesses to limit their

         13  testimony to two minutes.

         14                 Alex, do you want to go first?

         15                 MR. WOOD:  Sure.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please proceed.

         17                 MR. WOOD:  Good afternoon, and thank

         18  you for holding this hearing.  I am Alexander Wood,

         19  Executive Director of the Disabilities Network of

         20  New York City.  A City- wide coalition of

         21  individuals, organizations, and public and private

         22  partners working together to improve public policy

         23  in New York City, and striving towards a more

         24  accessible and inclusive society for all.

         25                 I am here to support the basic
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          2  concepts behind Intro. 19 and the City's movement

          3  towards installing accessible pedestrian signals,

          4  which will permit people who are blind, or have low

          5  vision, to navigate the City more independently.

          6                 This morning we heard from Deputy

          7  Commissioner Woloch of the Department of

          8  Transportation, that the City has had an APS program

          9  in place since the 1980s, and then he listed seven

         10  locations.  I was glad to hear that DOT acknowledges

         11  disability community input, and will adapt to using

         12  the newest technology available. And this brings us

         13  to another point of agreement, regarding Intro. 19,

         14  which is that the technical specs should be removed

         15  so as not to limit advances in technology and

         16  flexibility to adapt the crossing signals as they

         17  become, you know, as the technology improves and it

         18  becomes available.

         19                 We all agree also that 10

         20  intersections is too low a number in the City the

         21  size of New York.  Let's work together with the City

         22  Council, the Department of Transportation, Community

         23  Boards and New York City residents who are blind and

         24  have low vision to assess the demand, get the

         25  request placed and put together a program to install
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          2  APS wherever they are needed.  And the big point of

          3  conflict, I think, we are hearing today is that, you

          4  know, these systems should be put everywhere.  You

          5  know, not just where blind residents happen to be in

          6  the City, because you know I am thinking, you know,

          7  with this, with Christo's thing in Central park,

          8  with big events in Flushing Meadows, like the

          9  Immigrant Freedom Rally, you know, people move all

         10  across the City all the time, and you can't just

         11  limit their movement.

         12                 So does this mean that accessible

         13  pedestrian signals should be installed at all

         14  intersections?  At a recent meeting of the

         15  Disabilities Network - -

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Alex, I am going to

         17  have to ask you to wrap up.

         18                 MR. WOOD:  I am wrapping up, this is

         19  the last, I have four points here.  At a recent

         20  meeting of Disabilities Network members to

         21  coordinate our recommendations for this hearing, we

         22  noted the following:

         23                 Infrastructure changes at crossings

         24  should trigger accessible pedestrian signal

         25  installation at all new and renovated signals.
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          2                 There should be a Citywide roll out

          3  with a time line that should be determined at

          4  meetings after this hearing.

          5                 That the specifications in Intro. 19

          6  as it exists right now are too technical and

          7  limiting.

          8                 And that we should discuss at these

          9  further meetings between the Council, the Department

         10  of Transportation, and the community, things like,

         11  should these signals be automated versus pedestrian

         12  activated.

         13                 So my last word is there is a lot of

         14  work to do, and we look forward to doing it.  And

         15  what is the shortest time frame, I want to leave

         16  with a questions, which is, what is the shortest

         17  time frame to rework the bill and get it voted on

         18  and passed by this Committee and the Council as a

         19  whole?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Alex.

         21  Ken Stewart.

         22                 MR. STEWART: Thank you, Chair Liu,

         23  and thank you very much, especially Council Member

         24  Gale Brewer and the entire Transportation Committee

         25  for giving us this opportunity today.

                                                            98

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 I come with good news basically.

          3  This is an extremely important issue to me, and I am

          4  delighted that I can report to you that the

          5  Department of Transportation is currently being very

          6  responsive to this need.  I have had a long history

          7  on this issue, as one of my most important advocacy

          8  issues, way back when I was the Chair of the

          9  Community Board 4 in Manhattan.  I have lots of

         10  correspondence on it here, if anybody is an

         11  historian, I can share with you. We have been

         12  working on this issue since the 1990s.  Active on an

         13  Advisory Committee, the US Access Board in

         14  Washington, which is about to come out with

         15  guidelines on many rights of ways issues.  And I

         16  have the document here that anybody who wants to

         17  look at it can see what guidelines are going to be

         18  coming from the federal government soon.

         19                 I am currently President of the

         20  Metropolitan Council of Low Vision Individuals, and

         21  this is one of our top advocacy issues.  I am active

         22  in a number of other disabilities organizations,

         23  American Council of the Blind, Disabled Disabilities

         24  Network of New York City, Disabled in Action,

         25  Metropolitan York, American Council of Blind, and
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          2  all of us are very, very encouraged by the attention

          3  that this issue is getting.

          4                 I wish I was at the microphone when

          5  Council Member Brewer was asking specific questions,

          6  and I would welcome them now or at some future

          7  point, I can certainly reinforce and supplement what

          8  the Department of Transportation said already.  A

          9  very important event happened last year, in the

         10  spring of the year, I had my first contact with the

         11  Director of the Traffic Signals Division, Department

         12  of Transportation, Alan Borock, and he was extremely

         13  responsive, and that led to the first installation

         14  of APS, Sixth Avenue and 23rd Street.  I contributed

         15  information and encouragement to the ones that just

         16  went in on February 8th, and we all, as Alexander

         17  Wood has already said, are looking forward to many

         18  more coming very soon.

         19                 And I also have with me that I will

         20  leave for the Transportation Committee a handbook

         21  produced by the American Council of the Blind.  One

         22  of the valuable things in there is that it lists

         23  number of manufacturers of these devices.

         24                 More good news, this is a competitive

         25  field now.  New York City is a big potential buyer,
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          2  and it can go for competitive bids.  I brought with

          3  me today, a device to demonstrate.  I have

          4  demonstrated at many organizations already.  One of

          5  these APS, this happens to be made available by

          6  Polara.  I have no interest in Polara.  I am very

          7  grateful to them having this device loaned to the

          8  Manhattan Community Board for many years.  And they

          9  also, by the way, donated the two devices that were

         10  installed, Sixth Avenue and 23rd Street, so they

         11  deserve credit for that.

         12                 But I encourage the City of New York

         13  to go for competitive bidding.  This is certainly

         14  something that could bring the price down, and make

         15  them very modest.  In my written remarks, I go into

         16  more detail, and I urge attention to the

         17  infrastructure as the Department of Transportation

         18  has indicated, it is much better when the

         19  infrastructure is there already, and I just need to

         20  bank these boxes onto the pole, and hook up the

         21  wire, it is very simple.

         22                 But when there is no infrastructure

         23  in the right places, it gets tougher.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Mr. Stewart, please

         25  wrap up.
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          2                 MR. STEWART:  Sure.  One of the

          3  things that I think is very important to note is

          4  that the current technology can be very low key.  I

          5  doesn't have to intrusive at all, the ones that are

          6  on the streets now, don't do this, but they can be

          7  programmed so that they are automatic and they are

          8  only heard and felt, by the way this is important,

          9  this is a tactual thing too, with only a few feet

         10  from the box, each box.  So people that live nearby,

         11  or a fellow that is selling newspapers all day

         12  nearby doesn't have to listen to it at all, and the

         13  person that needs the information doesn't even have

         14  to get to the box to push the button, because it is

         15  automatic at every cycle.  And Mr. Borock and others

         16  know that we have problems with trash baskets in the

         17  way at certain intersections and all.  So the

         18  programming is very simple and it could be made so

         19  that it is not intrusive at all, and extremely

         20  helpful to a wide range of pedestrians, by the way,

         21  just not vision impaired people.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         23                 MR. STEWART:  Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         25  much.  And again, I want to apologize to everybody
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          2  who has waited so long to testify.  We have many

          3  people to hear from and I would ask you to respect

          4  the two minutes.  I will be using the clock, and at

          5  the end of the two minutes we will ask you to sum up

          6  very quickly.

          7                 Mike, I am sorry, Susan, Susan

          8  Scheer, and then Michael Godino.

          9                 MS. SCHEER:  Hi, I would like to

         10  thank the members of the Committee for giving me the

         11  opportunity to speak to you today.  My name is Susan

         12  Scheer, and I have been an advocate of longstanding

         13  for people with disabilities.  I have worked in

         14  designing the City's door- to- door transportation

         15  system, working with Columbia University as a

         16  Director of Disability Services, running Manhattan

         17  Independent Living Center and various other

         18  activities.

         19                 I am here today to speak in support

         20  of Intro. No. 19.  I want to just briefly lay out

         21  the importance of this issue to a wide and

         22  increasing number of people.  It is worth noting

         23  that 17 percent of people age 45 and older report

         24  some form of vision impairment with 9 percent

         25  classified as severe, and 21 percent of persons age
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          2  65 and over, report vision impairment, with 11

          3  percent reporting a severe vision impairment.  Those

          4  numbers are only expected to grow in the coming

          5  years, regrettably, because of the growing incidents

          6  of diabetes, which is often associated with low

          7  vision, and due to the rapid aging of the baby

          8  boomers, among us, myself included, who are now

          9  living into their seventies, eighties and nineties.

         10                 At present, individuals with low or

         11  no vision encounter significant obstacles when they

         12  are trying to cross the City's heavily congested

         13  streets.  Folks who use guide dogs have received

         14  special training for the dogs and themselves, and

         15  how to move about the City, but even those are not

         16  perfect solutions.  And of course, the majority of

         17  people with vision impairment do not use guide dogs

         18  at all.

         19                 Busy intersections with traffic

         20  coming from multiple directions, such as the

         21  southern edge of Union Square Park, make it

         22  difficult to discern accurately the flow of traffic.

         23    Extra wide streets, such as Broadway on the Upper

         24  West Side, challenge everyone who cannot see far

         25  enough to make out the walk, don't walk signal
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          2  located more than six lanes of traffic away.

          3                 I want to commend the sponsors of

          4  Intro. 19, especially Councilwoman Brewer for

          5  introducing this and having the foresight to look

          6  for viable solutions now for what is going to be a

          7  growing safety issue in the years to come.

          8                 I just want to add one issue to echo

          9  what Alexander has said earlier, which is --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please wrap up.

         11                 MS. SHEER:  Okay.  That the issue of

         12  demand, like with pedestrian ramps, people with

         13  vision impairments travel everywhere in the City.

         14  And to limit it to areas where people with

         15  disabilities go is both impossible and full hardy,

         16  and we should look to extend this as quickly as

         17  possible to as many locations as possible.

         18                 Thank you for giving me the

         19  opportunity to speak.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, and

         21  thank you for bearing with us.  Michael.

         22                 MR. GODINO:  Chairman Liu, Council

         23  Member Brewer, Committee members, thank you for

         24  holding this hearing. I am here today as a

         25  representative of the American Council of the Blind
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          2  of New York.  We were established in New York in

          3  1971.  We are an organization who promotes the

          4  independence, equality of access, and dignity for

          5  people who are blind.

          6                 The City is a widely traveled place

          7  by people who are mainly pedestrians.  The Mayor is

          8  promoting the changing of all of the literal signs,

          9  the walk; don't walk signs into international icons

         10  so that the international visitors have also equal

         11  access to our streets and pedestrian crossings.

         12  People who are blind need that equality of access to

         13  all intersections throughout New York City.  We need

         14  to be able to cross where we need to cross.  Many

         15  people who are blind and visually impaired are

         16  provided with what is called mobility training.  And

         17  with such, we learn how to cross intersections using

         18  traffic that may be parallel to us, when they are

         19  moving, we know the light is green, we can cross the

         20  street in front of us.

         21                 In New York City there are some less

         22  traveled streets.  There are some T intersections

         23  that really should not be requested that they be

         24  installed on these intersections.  This is where we

         25  need to begin installing first, at the less traveled
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          2  intersections, rather than the highly traveled

          3  intersections and the T intersection.  One, around

          4  City Hall Park here, there are many T intersections.

          5  Thirty- third Street and Seventh Avenue there is a

          6  major bus stop, and you have to cross in order to

          7  get into Penn Station. So really these are critical

          8  places that the community should not have to come

          9  forward and request that these accessible signals be

         10  installed.

         11                 As a representative of the American

         12  Council of the Blind of New York, we would like to

         13  see the nomenclature, which I see has been changed,

         14  changed from audio to accessible pedestrian signals

         15  because that is now the PC term and the more

         16  promoting term.

         17                 We would like to see the

         18  infrastructure be installed whenever a signal

         19  intersection is overhauled.

         20                 The present bill, we would like to

         21  see expanded, rather than the seven or ten signals

         22  that we now have, to Citywide.

         23                 Just to comment on the Commissioner's

         24  statement of --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And to also wrap
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          2  up.

          3                 MR. GODINO:  Yes, just to comment on

          4  a statement that the actuated system that we don't

          5  need them running 24 hours a day.  On a 24- hour

          6  system it will have an ambient noise sensor, so that

          7  in the evening when there is less traffic the volume

          8  will be turned down.  Additionally, we need them all

          9  over; we don't need to request them.

         10                 Thank you very much for this

         11  opportunity.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very much

         13  for testifying today.  Now I would like to ask our

         14  next panel to join us, we have Annalyn Courtney

         15  Barbier, Lukas Frauck, Mark Grossman, and Phyllis

         16  Gonzalez.

         17                 After this panel, the next panel to

         18  testify, and I ask them to prepare to do so, will

         19  be, Barry Schneider, Robert Iovino, Karen

         20  Eisenstadt, and Dorothy Williams Pererra. Ms.

         21  Barbier, please proceed.

         22                 MS. BARBIER:  Good afternoon.  My

         23  name is Annalyn Courtney Barbier, and I am an

         24  orientation and mobility specialist at vision

         25  services for the blind and visually impaired.
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          2  Visions is a City- wide rehabilitation and social

          3  services agency, which provides programs and

          4  services to individuals of all ages who are blind

          5  and visually impaired. As a certified orientation

          6  and mobility specialist, I teach blind and vision-

          7  impaired individuals how to travel safely and

          8  independently.

          9                 One of the skills I teach is to

         10  determine when it is safe to begin crossing the

         11  street.  An important aspect of this skill is

         12  learning to analyze and intersection, determining

         13  the shape and size of the intersection, the type of

         14  traffic control, the presence of one or two- way

         15  traffic, and the possibility of encountering turning

         16  traffic while crossing.  It is important for the

         17  blind individual to be able to determine the

         18  beginning of the traffic cycle to allow enough time

         19  to complete the crossing.  This is usually done by

         20  listening to the surge of parallel traffic.

         21  However, when an intersection is of an unusual

         22  shape, or the pedestrian walk signal comes on before

         23  the parallel traffic moves, it becomes difficult for

         24  the blind individual to determine to the safest time

         25  to begin crossing.
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          2                 An audible signal has been installed

          3  at the intersection of Sixth Avenue and 23rd Street.

          4    The decision to place the device at this

          5  intersection may be due to the location of Selis

          6  Manor, a residence for Blind and Visually Impaired

          7  individuals, which also houses a community center

          8  operated by Visions.  Two incidents of pedestrians

          9  being killed by turning traffic at this

         10  intersection, may have also influenced the placement

         11  of the system.

         12                 This APS announces when the walk

         13  light is on for Sixth Avenue.  It does not announce

         14  when the walk light is on for 23rd Street.  However,

         15  when the walk light goes on for Sixth Avenue, the

         16  parallel traffic surges at the same time. The

         17  traffic surge alone can inform the blind and

         18  visually impaired individuals that it is time to

         19  begin crossing.  When the walk light goes on at 23rd

         20  Street, there is no simultaneous surge in the

         21  parallel traffic.  The surge is delayed for 10

         22  seconds around sighted pedestrians to begin crossing

         23  without the presence of turning traffic.  Despite

         24  the location of an APS at this intersection, blind

         25  and vision impaired individuals do not have access
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          2  to the same light, walk light information as sighted

          3  individuals.  The consideration of danger present at

          4  the intersection and high volume of blind and

          5  visually impaired users may have resulted in the

          6  selection of this intersection.  However, additional

          7  information regarding how blind and visually

          8  impaired individuals determine when to begin

          9  crossing, would have resulted in better placement at

         10  the APS.

         11                 It would be beneficial for those in

         12  the blindness community and the orientation and

         13  mobility profession to learn about environmental and

         14  other constraints encountered by traffic engineers

         15  when planning placement, installation of APS

         16  systems.  Rather than placing these devices closest

         17  to blindness agencies, we encourage that surrounding

         18  neighborhoods be analyzed to identify complex

         19  intersections.  It is recommended that the

         20  Department of Transportation work with blindness

         21  community, as well as orientation and mobility

         22  instructors to determine a set of criteria for where

         23  to place audible signals, and also to look at

         24  requests for placement of APS.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please wrap up.
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          2                 MS. BARBIER:  I just want to say

          3  thank you for this opportunity to testify, and that

          4  Visions looks forward to the possibility of merging

          5  the expertise and the experience of all parties

          6  involved, to ensure that these necessary devices be

          7  placed in the most useful locations.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Mr.

          9  Lukas Frauck.

         10                 MR. FRANK:  It is Frank, thank you

         11  very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Oh, Frank.

         13                 MR. FRANK:  It is an honor to be

         14  here, thank you very much, Council members, Council

         15  Member Brewer for spearheading this bill.

         16                 I was fortunate enough to be able to

         17  work with the National Committee on Uniformed

         18  Traffic Control Devices and writing some of the

         19  language that has been discussed here today.  I am a

         20  dog- guide instructor and trainer, working for the

         21  Seeing Eye in Morristown, New Jersey.  I am also a

         22  certified orientation and mobility specialist.  And

         23  I am speaking extemporaneously, so you don't have a

         24  copy of my statement.

         25                 But what I would like to do is
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          2  request that the Council consider adding to the bill

          3  that a Committee be formed comprising orientation

          4  and mobility specialist, such as my colleague, Ms.

          5  Barbier, and blind people, and representatives of

          6  the Traffic Engineering Community and the Department

          7  of Transportation to help create a prioritization

          8  scheme.

          9                 To that end, I would also like to

         10  quickly mention that the National Cooperative

         11  Highway Research Project, 3- 62 is working on

         12  creating a national prioritization scheme to help

         13  communities develop priorities about where

         14  installation should take place, and what should go

         15  first.  And I think that the bill should take into

         16  account, when it comes to that this actual, official

         17  process be utilized.

         18                 Once again, having grown up in New

         19  York City and having watched the installation of

         20  walk, don't walk signs, as a child, it is exciting

         21  to see this information becoming accessible.  And I

         22  applaud the City on this move, and keep going.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Mr.

         24  Grossman.

         25                 MR. GROSSMAN:  I would like to thank
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          2  the members of the Council for holding this meeting,

          3  and inviting people down to testify.  My name is

          4  Marc Grossman.  Today I am representing the Jewish

          5  Guild for the Blind, a full- service agency in New

          6  York City since 1914.

          7                 I would just like to say that the APS

          8  system has been a great help to me and to other

          9  visually impaired people here in New York City.  One

         10  of the most pedestrian friendly cities that I have

         11  ever been too.  Everything is very accessible here,

         12  and I applaud the City for making efforts to make it

         13  even more accessible to people who are visually

         14  impaired.

         15                 In addition, I would like to say, the

         16  planning process starts for, how to select

         17  locations.  I would like to sort of echo what other

         18  people have said today, and also encourage them to

         19  look at the areas of 65th Street, 66th Street, both

         20  on Columbus Avenue, Central Park West, and as far

         21  over towards Broadway to cover the distances that

         22  some people walk from the different subway lines to

         23  the Jewish Guild.  The whole area around Lincoln

         24  Center, Columbus Circle is filled with intersections

         25  and streets that don't necessarily follow a
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          2  traditional grid- like pattern, which the mobility

          3  instructors will tell you helps us determine when it

          4  is safe to cross.

          5                 Again, I would just like to thank the

          6  Council, the Committee, Councilwoman Brewer for

          7  introducing Intro. 19, and just lend my support,

          8  thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Thank

         10  you, and Mr. Grossman for your brevity.  Ms.

         11  Gonzalez.

         12                 MS. GONZALEZ:  My name is Phyllis

         13  Gonzalez, and I would like to thank the

         14  Transportation Committee for putting this on the

         15  agenda.  I am impaired, wheelchair impaired, and I

         16  am the President of the Ellie Chelsea Tenant

         17  Association. And we have a lot of residents between

         18  seniors and just every day people that go through

         19  the changes behind diabetes and what have you.  And

         20  it is really a showing, that it is the first time

         21  that I had to get a wheelchair, and I know what it

         22  feels like when you are trying to branch out, but

         23  you are afraid.  But when you have something there

         24  helping you, you sort of jump at it.  So after 16

         25  years I went on the train to Coney Island.  And it
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          2  sounds, you know, simple to some people, but it was

          3  the first time that I was able to get on a train and

          4  go somewhere without having support, and know that I

          5  can get back home safely.  And I think that is what

          6  is happening here today.  This is a great, great

          7  chance for people to get out and say, hey, I can do

          8  that myself now that I have help.

          9                 And I want to thank all of you, thank

         10  you so much for being here, and I support everyone

         11  who has spoken today.  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you all for

         13  your very thoughtful comments this morning and this

         14  afternoon.

         15                 Our next panel, please join us at the

         16  witness table, Barry Schneider, Robert Iovino, Karen

         17  Eisenstadt, and Dorothy Williams Pererra.  And why

         18  don't we have, okay, we will hear from these three.

         19                 The next panel will consist of John

         20  Gresham, Gloria Korecki, and Mildred Blechman.

         21                 After that panel competes its

         22  testimony, we will hear testimony concerning the

         23  parking meters on Sundays.

         24                 MR. SCHNEIDER:  Mr. Chairman, if I

         25  may, I would like to yield to Mr. Iovino and then

                                                            116

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  speak after him.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please.

          4                 MR. IOVINO:  Mr. Chair, Council

          5  Member Brewer, and the Transportation Committee, I

          6  must thank you for having me this morning.  I will

          7  be quite brief, a lot of the testimony that you have

          8  heard already, there is no need to echo it.  I

          9  firmly support the bill.

         10                 My name is Robert Iovino, and I am

         11  currently the Director of Operations for the East

         12  Midtown Association, one of the City's Business

         13  Improvement Districts here in Manhattan, in the

         14  City, rather.  Last Tuesday, February 8th, we became

         15  the first BID to install an accessible pedestrian

         16  signal at the intersections of East 59th Street and

         17  Park Avenue, and East 59th Street and Lexington

         18  Avenue.  We installed those accessible signals with

         19  the cooperation, the extreme cooperation, I might

         20  add with Alan Bard, the Department of Cooperation,

         21  Lighthouse International's input from their mobility

         22  experts, and we selected Polara, the navigator

         23  system, that unfortunately, you haven't been able to

         24  see operate today.

         25                 Mr. Matt Sapolin was on hand, the
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          2  Executive Director from the Mayor's Office for

          3  People With Disabilities, and quite frankly, to be

          4  very honest with you, the unanimous, positive

          5  feedback from both the users and the neighbors has

          6  been very encouraging with these devices.  We

          7  anticipate the impact of this program to be far-

          8  reaching and long- lasting. East Midtown's

          9  Associations pilot project here also included in

         10  other installation, as I said, at 59th and Lex.

         11                 I just want to digress from my

         12  testimony for a second and speak to some issue that

         13  might be of community concerns.  Volume issues, the

         14  units that we installed respond to the ambient noise

         15  level at the street.  There was a complaint from a

         16  resident on 59th and Park Avenue in the Trump Tower,

         17  that was very quickly addressed.  It is a very

         18  simple volume control that can be adjusted with a

         19  handheld device. That situation was corrected by my

         20  office within 24 hours.  So there are adjustments

         21  that can be made to least impact the community and

         22  help the individually impaired community as much as

         23  possible.

         24                 Once I say, again, just let me say

         25  the intent of these devices is not supervised
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          2  safety, but rather to provide the blind and visually

          3  impaired the same opportunity that you and I have

          4  when we cross an intersection with the same amount

          5  of information.

          6                 Thank you for your time, and

          7  appreciate it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Mr.

          9  Schneider.

         10                 MR. SCHNEIDER:  Yes, thank you. Good

         11  afternoon, Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee,

         12  my name is Barry Schneider.  I am President of the

         13  East Sixties Neighborhood Association on the Upper

         14  East Side of Manhattan, and not for attribution, I

         15  am the Co- Chair of the Transportation Committee of

         16  Community Board 8 for about 12 years, having been

         17  Chairman of the Board for about three years some

         18  time ago.

         19                 I am here today to voice my

         20  unqualified support for Intro. 19, the establishment

         21  of the City of New York of accessible pedestrian

         22  signal program.  I first learned of these signals at

         23  a meeting of the East Midtown Association with

         24  representatives of Lighthouse International.  It was

         25  an ah- huh experience.  How obvious, how simple, how
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          2  wonderful, and why hasn't the City of opportunity

          3  adopted a program like this decades earlier.  I will

          4  not go onto the obvious merits of this of extending

          5  it to the visually impaired the same type of cues

          6  that sighted have in crossing our City street.  You

          7  have already heard from the experts in this regard.

          8                 My point is this, the proposed

          9  legislation before you is reasonable, practical, and

         10  desirable.  I urge the City Council to adopt it

         11  without delay.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  And Ms.

         14  Eisenstadt.

         15                 MS. EISENSTADT:  I am Karen

         16  Eisenstadt.  I am here on behalf of two

         17  organizations, and I guess myself as well.  I am

         18  here on behalf of the American Council of the Blind

         19  of Greater New York, and Guide Dog Users of New

         20  York, both of which are advocacy consumer

         21  organizations for the blind and visually impaired.

         22  And both organizations and I support the

         23  installation of pedestrian signals, APS.  It is hard

         24  enough to get around New York for anyone, and for a

         25  person who cannot see, any information that we get
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          2  is really helpful.

          3                 You heard that guide dog users get

          4  specific training for traffic, and mobility people

          5  get training as well.  But we have to know when the

          6  cycle starts, and if we don't know that, then there

          7  is really no way that we can work with that.

          8  Intersections are different.  There are T

          9  intersections, there are plus intersections.

         10  Traffic isn't as loud as it used to be.  It really

         11  is difficult to get around without some kind of

         12  specific help and information.  Sighted people get

         13  this information, and it would be really helpful if

         14  we did as well.  So that blind and visually impaired

         15  people had audible and vibro tactile information.

         16                 The installation of such pedestrian

         17  signals would make New York City more user friendly

         18  to blind and visually impaired people.  Let me say

         19  that as a blind person and a guide dog user myself,

         20  I have used the signal at 23rd Street, and it made

         21  me feel an awful lot more comfortable.

         22                 Thank you very much, thank you for

         23  doing this so that blind people can get around the

         24  City more comfortably and safer.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you for
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          2  joining us this morning and afternoon, and for your

          3  thoughtful testimony.

          4                 Our final panel testifying on Intro.

          5  19 consists of John Gresham, Gloria Korecki, and

          6  Mildred Blechman, please join us at the witness

          7  table.  This will be the final panel on Intro. 19.

          8                 We will subsequently go back to

          9  hearing testimony on the parking meters on Sunday

         10  issue.  The first panel will consist of Reverend

         11  Mytle Smith, Reverend N.J. L'Heureux, Charles Henze,

         12  and V.M. Gandhi.

         13                 John, please proceed.

         14                 MR. GRESHAM:  John Gresham, New York

         15  Lawyers for the Public Interest.  I just wanted to

         16  say briefly that I have traveled many times over the

         17  last 30 years to Britain. And from 1975, at least, I

         18  noticed in London, crossing signals have a beeping

         19  sound, which I found helpful.  And frankly I think

         20  it is an additional cue that is useful to fully

         21  sighted people.  This is probably relatively crude

         22  compared to what is available now, but for at least

         23  30 years in another world class city there have been

         24  audible crossing signals.

         25                 I also wanted to mention that when I
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          2  was in college, which was in the 1960s, there were

          3  audible signals in Watertown, Massachusetts is the

          4  location for the Perkin School for the Blind.  That

          5  was the first time I noticed audible signals

          6  anywhere, but that is now 40 years ago.  So this can

          7  be done, it could have been done for a long time,

          8  and it is not rocket science.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Is that it, John.

         11                 MR. GRESHAM:  That is it.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very much

         13  for your brevity.  Gloria Korecki.

         14                 MS. KORECKI:  Thank you, thank you,

         15  Gale Brewer, and thank you the rest of the panel and

         16  the audience here.  I will try to be brief; I

         17  probably could go on forever.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  As can John

         19  Gresham, we are well aware of that.  But we always

         20  appreciate his very thoughtful testimony.

         21                 MS. KORECKI:  I will try to keep

         22  going.  I certainly endorse all that has been said,

         23  so I would just like to add a few more comments.  In

         24  regards to the DOT and how extremely cooperative

         25  they have been, it made me smile because I have got
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          2  a stack full of emails and copy of emails that I

          3  have sent to DOT and not necessarily responded to.

          4  But what I was amazed was how quickly the

          5  traditional light signals were replaced by the

          6  little man, or the little hand, overnight.  I was

          7  also impressed by the placement of the large signs

          8  on the Avenues, so that the visiting Republicans

          9  would not get lost.  And they certainly responded

         10  very fast.

         11                 The Mayor would like to have Olympics

         12  come here, since these will be foreign who are

         13  custom to such signals, I think they will be

         14  astounded to see that the City of New York has not

         15  such a signal.

         16                 In addition the Olympics, there will

         17  be disabled Olympics, which also creates another

         18  need.

         19                 Again, as far as Community Boards, I

         20  did contact Community Boards, they are not aware of

         21  the signal system.  So I guess there is more work to

         22  be done.  These signals are not only for the blind.

         23  It is an issue that is in front of young people, it

         24  is an issue for people in wheelchairs, and also

         25  bearing in mind that someone said, we are aging.
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          2  And with aging, it is not a disability, but it

          3  certainly carries with it some additional

          4  hindrances.  And I certainly think that the City of

          5  New York should be in the forefront as opposed to be

          6  behind since the rest of this country have signals

          7  already installed.

          8                 Thank you very much.  Sorry for the

          9  shaky voice.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  It is perfect.

         11                 MS. BELCHMAN:  I want to thank Gale

         12  Brewer who has really been so cooperative for those

         13  of us who require walking signals.  I am not going

         14  to go into the technicality, and I think everyone

         15  here has expressed their needs and gave us some

         16  wonderful information as to why we need these

         17  signals as quickly as we can get them.

         18                 I am just going to give you a little

         19  bit of personal situations.  Soon as I had this

         20  vision problem, I knew that I couldn't cross the

         21  street without some help.  Well I have been getting

         22  help, New York City is very kind, but as they cross

         23  me across the street, because I cannot see the walk,

         24  don't walk signal, I am also being pick- pocketed.

         25  This has happened to me three times in the four or
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          2  five years.

          3                 Secondly, I fine that I dread the

          4  summer. Because in the summertime when I have to,

          5  when someone comes over to me and says, do you need

          6  help?  I do need help, I cannot see the crossing,

          7  and it is so noisy in the street that I am trying to

          8  work out where is the traffic stop so that I can

          9  cross.  I am also having someone take my arm with

         10  sweaty hot hands, right, and helping me across the

         11  street.  I mean I should be looking forward to the

         12  nice warm weather, but I keep thinking of what

         13  happens when the weather gets so bad and so sunny,

         14  and I have to ask.

         15                 And one of the things that we are

         16  always told when we have a loss of vision, that we

         17  have to have dignity, and we must be self- reliant,

         18  and that we should respect our needs and ask others

         19  for help.  Well, now I think we are all asking the

         20  Department of Transportation, come on, help us, 43

         21  other states in the United States has signals.  We

         22  are in the 21st Century, there must be enough

         23  understanding of what technicality is the best for

         24  us to have crossing signals.

         25                 Thank you so much, and especially,
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          2  thank you, Gale Brewer.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Ms.

          4  Blechman, for testifying, and I want to thank this

          5  distinguished panel for joining us today.

          6                 That concludes the testimony for

          7  Intro. 19. Once again, I want to thank Gale Brewer,

          8  Council member for her extraordinary efforts on this

          9  issue, and for her prime sponsorship of Intro. 19.

         10                 We now, to turn the hearing over back

         11  to the issue of parking meters on Sundays.  And we

         12  will hear from the first panel on this topic,

         13  Reverend Mytle Smith, Reverend N.J. L'Heureux,

         14  Charles Henze, and V.M. Ghandi.

         15                 This panel will be followed by a

         16  panel consisting of Josephine Beckman, Dean Rasinya,

         17  Brian Kassenbrock, and Matt Mihovich.

         18                 Reverend Smith.

         19                 REV. SMITH:  I would like to say good

         20  afternoon, and thank you Chair Liu for having this

         21  meeting for us.  My name is Mytle Smith.  I am

         22  Pastor of the Emmanuel Baptist Church, 3711 by

         23  Plains Road and in the Northeast Bronx.  I am also a

         24  retired registered nurse from 34 years.

         25                 I would like to also thank the
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          2  Council members, and especially Council Member Larry

          3  Seabrook, who is not present at this moment.  Thank

          4  you for allowing me the chance to voice the concerns

          5  of many of the people of the Northeast Bronx.

          6  Churches, Synagogues, and community, and places of

          7  worship, all places, it causes me, number one a

          8  great surprise not really being, living in the Bronx

          9  too many years, that there was parking meters on

         10  Sunday, which had to be paid, so that was a great

         11  surprise.  But the parishioners on Sunday to have to

         12  bring tickets on Monday, saying they got tickets.

         13  My thought first was why couldn't the meters be

         14  covered for those times of worship?  Our church is a

         15  very busy church, and our church also provides

         16  services for the young people that are in group

         17  homes.

         18                 Many of the residents are brought to

         19  our church in wheelchairs, and what causes a problem

         20  is the vans in which transports these persons have

         21  to be parked on White Plains Road, and which they

         22  get tickets.

         23                 Many of the parishioners of the

         24  church have to leave the service, and unfortunately,

         25  the Commissioner is not here to hear that our

                                                            128

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  service goes much longer than one hour. And this

          3  causes a disruption in our service, because many of

          4  the ministers, the choir members, at different times

          5  have to leave and go out and put money in the meter.

          6                 I will rush.  I am really saddened,

          7  and as I wind up, to hear that the Commissioner's

          8  word or rationalizing his reason for parking on

          9  Sunday.  It just seemed like everything we said, was

         10  said to him was yes, but.  And I will go home, go

         11  back to the churches and the community saying that I

         12  really think his mind was made up with a silent no.

         13                 Thank you so much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         15  much, Reverend Smith.

         16                 Reverend L'Heureux, good to see you

         17  again.

         18                 REV. L'HEUREUX:  Good afternoon, good

         19  to see you, John.  I am here on behalf of the Queens

         20  Federation of Churches, which is the Ecumenical

         21  Council of Christian Churches in the Borough of

         22  Queens.  Some 380 congregations representing broadly

         23  all of the denominations and Christendom present in

         24  the Borough and many independent churches

         25  participate in this Ecumenical Ministry.
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          2                 We are very concerned for the, not

          3  just the inconvenience, but the outrage that this

          4  has caused to church parishioners.  As has been said

          5  many times today, one hour is an insufficient amount

          6  of time to make for the worship service.  No one has

          7  mentioned the fact in these Chambers that the act of

          8  feeding a meter subsequently is equally as illegal

          9  as parking there without feeding it at all.  And so

         10  what has happened is that a generation of

         11  lawbreakers has been created by the administrative

         12  act of the Department of Transportation.

         13                 This is an important thing that we

         14  do.  The Commissioner in his testimony this morning

         15  indicated that some $9 million was derived by meter

         16  revenue out of 91 million all over. That suggest

         17  that Sunday meter usage is barely half of what it is

         18  on any of the other six days of the week.  So the

         19  claims that there is a necessity for economic

         20  turnover on Sunday is purely nonsense.

         21                 If meters were designed for the

         22  purpose for which they were originally designed,

         23  that is to say turnover, we wouldn't have the kinds

         24  of activities that regularly occur, where traffic

         25  enforcement officers double park, creating traffic
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          2  problems as they issue tickets.  Where the City

          3  wouldn't license parking violations by allowing

          4  people to pay an annual fee and having a free pass

          5  at meters as the Giuliani Administration did.  This

          6  is not a necessary thing, it is a taxation on those

          7  who worship, a taxation on those who get together

          8  for family activities on Sunday.  This type of

          9  predatory activity must be stopped, because we do

         10  not need a City that preys on those who pray.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very much

         12  Reverend L'Heureux.  Mr. Charles Henze.

         13                 MR. HENZE:  Good day, and thank you.

         14  I am Deacon Charles Henze, Program Director of the

         15  Brooklyn Council of Churches.  The Brooklyn Council

         16  of Churches represents 160 Protestant and Orthodox

         17  Churches in the Borough of Brooklyn.

         18                 Last May I received a ticket for $65

         19  for parking in Manhattan on a Sunday, and subsequent

         20  to that, I sent out a parking regulation alert to

         21  Community Boards in Brooklyn and also to churches.

         22  It seems what happens with the Department of Traffic

         23  that sometimes paying a meter is not enough, one

         24  must be fined, and in certain instances people are

         25  towed.  And they are towed sometimes from the side
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          2  ripping up the ball joints of cars.  And I can see,

          3  unfortunately, how very almost intransigent the

          4  bureaucracy of the City of New York can be in

          5  response to Councilman Gentile's questions and

          6  evidence.

          7                 I read from my statement, and I cut

          8  to the quick.  We are distressed that the City of

          9  New York would consider it appropriate to force

         10  congregants to leave their Sunday school classes,

         11  choir rehearsals, morning services of worship,

         12  afternoon services of worship, their duties as

         13  tellers and fellowship, to go put a quarters in a

         14  parking meter every 55 minutes.  Particularly, when

         15  most businesses on these commercial strips are

         16  closed on Sunday.  We consider this entire endeavor

         17  an inane experiment not to increase the parking

         18  meter revenue by one- sixth, but to increase the

         19  ticketing revenue by that one- sixth margin.

         20                 New York City would have us believe

         21  that they only want to take a coin from out of our

         22  front, right pocket. Actually, they are after the

         23  $65 dollars in our left, rear pocket.  Of the 1,552

         24  churches in our Borough, 39 are on Church Avenue.

         25  Church Avenue has meters.  Forty- one are on
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          2  Nostrand Avenue, 52 are on Fulton Street, 60 are on

          3  Rogers Avenue, all with meters at their curbs.  They

          4  do not want to suffer from this blatantly, ill

          5  conceived, and outrageous scheme.

          6                 Thank you for your time.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you for your

          8  time today, and we certainly appreciate the

          9  thoughtful comments that you have.  Yes, written

         10  testimony, please, submit to the Sergeants at this

         11  table.

         12                 I would like to invite the next panel

         13  to join us at the witness table, Josephine Beckman,

         14  Dean Rasinya, Brian Kassenbrock, and Matt Mihovich.

         15                 Ms. Beckman.

         16                 MS. BECKMAN:  Yes, thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please proceed.  I

         18  would like to, I know that people are here for the

         19  one o'clock hearing, and I would like to ask you to

         20  bear with us as we finish up this final panel for

         21  the previous Committee hearing.  Ms. Beckman.

         22                 MS. BECKMAN:  Thank you for the

         23  opportunity to comment on the proposed legislation

         24  sponsored by Council Member Gentile regarding the

         25  elimination of parking meter charges on Sundays.  I
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          2  fully support this legislation.

          3                 The Community Board 10 also has

          4  received several complaints from local houses of

          5  worship and congregation members who have been

          6  adversely effected by the change in policy,

          7  including Sundays at parking meters.  In recent

          8  months worshipers have called our office to voice

          9  their frustration at walking further distances to

         10  attend services. In addition, seniors find it

         11  difficult to walk back and forth from their houses

         12  of worship to feed the meter, and are forced to deal

         13  with interruptions to their prayer service.

         14                 Finally, several churchgoers have

         15  expressed outrage at the DOT change in Sunday meter

         16  parking, and characterize it as not being respectful

         17  to those who worship on Sunday.

         18                 In a recent letter received from the

         19  Brooklyn Council of Churches echo this sentiment.

         20  In their letter, the Brooklyn Council of Churches

         21  sums up their opposition by pointing out that in a

         22  Borough which many houses are situated near

         23  commercial strips, parishioners have been able to

         24  park their vehicles, enter their churches, part-

         25  take a church school or choir rehearsal, worship in
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          2  fellowship with no interruptions whatsoever.  The

          3  interruption faced by worshipers on Sunday is simply

          4  not fair.  The houses of worship within CB 10 are

          5  impacted by this change in policy do not abut

          6  congestive shopping corridors, and the restoration

          7  of the former policy which excluded Sunday meter

          8  parking would not negatively impact the adjacent

          9  small business corridors.

         10                 Again, I fully support this

         11  legislation, and thank you for the opportunity to

         12  comment.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you for your

         14  thoughtful comments, many of them had already been

         15  voiced very vociferously by Council Member Vincent

         16  Gentile.  Mr. Rasinya.

         17                 MR. RASINYA:  Good afternoon.  As

         18  Vice- Chair of Community Board 10 in Brooklyn, which

         19  covers Bay Ridge, Fort Hamilton and Becker Heights,

         20  and the President of the Bay Ridge Community

         21  Council, which is an umbrella organization made up

         22  of 110- member organizations, I am here to tell you

         23  that the activation of parking meters on Sunday,

         24  with the exception of the 86th Street shopping

         25  corridor, does not serve the business or residential
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          2  community in a positive manner.

          3                 For those of us who drive to church,

          4  synagogue, or mosque, to worship or socialize, or

          5  drive to our local social or fraternal club, or

          6  drive to our family or friend's home to visit, the

          7  activation of parking meters on Sunday has a

          8  negative impact on our quality of life and adds

          9  stress to our already stressful lives.

         10                 Excluding the 86th Street shopping

         11  district, more than 50 percent of all businesses are

         12  closed on Sunday. Of the businesses, which are open,

         13  such as candy stores, pizza parlors, and delis, most

         14  have a clientele, which walk to the store.  Our

         15  community business strips have existed for decades

         16  without complaint regarding parking for customers on

         17  Sunday.

         18                 If the Department of Transportation

         19  cannot, or will not be selective and work with the

         20  local community with regard to activation of parking

         21  meters on Sunday, then all parking meter activation

         22  should be suspended on Sunday.

         23                 I just would like to add that I found

         24  it particularly troublesome the survey that was

         25  done, because in Bay Ridge they choose to pick Fifth
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          2  Avenue, which is only second to 86th Street in

          3  traffic by customers for commercial businesses, yet,

          4  the put parking meters on other blocks.  So it seems

          5  to be self- serving the matter in which they did

          6  these surveys also.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, that is

          9  useful to know.  Mr. Kassenbrock.

         10                 MR. KASSENBROCK:  Yes, good morning,

         11  or good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and members of the

         12  Committee, ladies and gentlemen.  I am a lifelong

         13  resident of Bay Ridge.  I also have worked on zoning

         14  and land use issues on task forces under Councilman

         15  Gentile's leadership, and also in community

         16  organizations.  And I believe that the salient fact

         17  in this whole issue is that Bay Ridge is a

         18  residential community.  It has one commercial hub,

         19  and a commercial strip that goes from 86th Street

         20  out toward 92nd Street.  That is the only are that

         21  is zoned commercial.

         22                 I have a very serious problem with

         23  the quality of the testimony from the Commissioner

         24  Woloch, who spoke earlier.  Who spoke of Bay Ridge

         25  as if it were a commercial area.  In fact, Third
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          2  Avenue and Fifth Avenue, and I know this exactly,

          3  because I have worked on this and all the technical

          4  aspects are zoned as residential areas, they are not

          5  zoned as commercial areas.  It is what is called the

          6  commercial overlay.  Commercial establishments may

          7  be located on the first floor only of Third Avenue

          8  and Fifth Avenue.  On the second floors, and on the

          9  third floors live people who are there as residents.

         10    Third Avenue and Fifth Avenue are primarily

         11  residential streets, and when you hear a

         12  Commissioner of the Department of Transportation

         13  give an analysis, which speaks of the community as

         14  if it were a commercial hub, it is totally off base.

         15    It's off base with the reality, it's off base with

         16  the existing zoning, it's off base with the proposed

         17  zoning.  And as a result it leads to defective

         18  conclusions, and the defective conclusion to which

         19  they have come is this Sunday parking meter

         20  regulation.

         21                 So I believe that we need to get back

         22  to some of the basics of what this community is all

         23  about, why people are there, it is primarily a good

         24  place to live. Sundays is an important day for

         25  family, for friends, for get togethers, where people

                                                            138

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  can find parking a little bit more easily, as well

          3  as for worship, as has already been mentioned.  And

          4  it is inappropriate to block out that little bit of

          5  residential life with parking meter regulations.

          6                 Thank you for your time.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Mr.

          8  Mihovich.

          9                 MR. MIHOVICH:  Yes, hi.  I originally

         10  came here for another matter, so you will see me

         11  again next month.  But on this thing about Sunday

         12  parking regulations, I will be real brief; you need

         13  to take three things into account.

         14                 Transportation Department noted that

         15  there was Sunday meters longer than two years ago.

         16  Yes, they were, but they were in the Orthodox

         17  neighborhoods, where Sunday is Monday.

         18                 He also conceded that in those same

         19  Orthodox neighborhoods they allowed for free parking

         20  Saturday, which is their Sunday.

         21                 So we are taking that in account, so

         22  my point one is they were not exactly telling you

         23  the truth as to why the meters have been in effect

         24  on Sunday longer in the past than the last two

         25  years.
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          2                 Number two, because there is this

          3  thing about, in the Orthodox neighborhoods Sunday is

          4  really a Monday, you need to question their survey

          5  about the number of businesses that are actually

          6  open on Sunday.  Because they are counting the

          7  Orthodox businesses, which for them is a Monday.

          8                 The third and final point is that I

          9  live in Park Slope, on 9th Street and 7th Avenue.

         10  At 8:55, there is a luncheonette, and a number of

         11  brownies, traffic officers, gather to have their

         12  little coffee, and at 8:59 they walk out the street,

         13  you are going for the paper, nine o'clock they are

         14  there to write the tickets.  It is about the money.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, thank

         17  you very much for joining us all today.  And I want

         18  to thank Chairperson Lopez for her indulgence in

         19  allowing our Committee hearing to go a little over

         20  our time.  At this time, being no other witnesses,

         21  this hearing of the Transportation Committee is

         22  adjourned.

         23                 (Hearing adjourned at 1:04 p.m.)

         24                 (The following testimony was read

         25  into the record).
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          2

          3  Testimony of:

          4  Fran Freedman, LMSW

          5  Senior Vice President

          6  Public Affairs and communications

          7  Lighthouse International

          8                 Lighthouse International has been

          9  advocating for audible pedestrian signals for more

         10  than a decade, as part of our century- long

         11  commitment to ensuring equal access to every aspect

         12  of mainstream life for people who are blind and

         13  partially sighted.

         14                 On February 8, 2005, The East Midtown

         15  Association, our local BID, made our advocacy

         16  efforts a reality by funding and installing audible

         17  pedestrian signals on the north sides of 59th Street

         18  at Park and Lexington Avenues.  The New York City

         19  Department of Transportation played a major role, as

         20  well, in providing much needed technical assistance

         21  to this project.

         22                 The accessible technology we selected

         23  provides audibly the same information to people who

         24  are blind and partially sighted as the visual

         25  pedestrian signals provide to people who are
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          2  sighted.  An audible locator tone directs the

          3  pedestrian to a button/arrow on the signal pole.

          4  When pushed, it activates a voice message, which

          5  says, "Cross sign in on Park Avenue" or

          6   "Walk sign is on Park Avenue."

          7                 Vision rehabilitation professionals

          8  at the Lighthouse underscore that audible pedestrian

          9  signals enhance safe travel for people who are blind

         10  and partially sighted but never substitute for

         11  strong mobility skills gained through vision

         12  rehabilitation services.

         13                 The day after the installation, a

         14  cane- user who comes to the Lighthouse regularly,

         15  sent me the following e mail:

         16                  "I have to cross Park Avenue quite

         17  early in the morning and often there is no one

         18  around to let me know if the light is about to

         19  change.  This morning when I got to the corner of

         20  Park, I pressed the button and right away I heard

         21   'wait' several times.  Then I heard it tell me the

         22  light was in my favor.  What a freeing experience

         23  that was.  No longer will I have to wait until a

         24  sighted person comes along to let me know whether or

         25  not I have the full light."
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          2                 We urge the passage of your bill by

          3  City Council, and thank you for your caring concern

          4  for New Yorkers of all ages who are blind and

          5  partially sighted.

          6                 Please feel free to use this letter,

          7  and the videotape, as Lighthouse testimony.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 1:09 p.m.)
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